
            

 

Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel 

 
THURSDAY, 21ST MARCH, 2013 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Alexander, Bloch, Gibson, McNamara (Chair) and Stanton and 

Weber 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. LATE ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  New Items will 
be dealt with at item X below. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interest are defined 
at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 



 

2 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 
 To agree minutes and action points from the meeting of 8th January 2013. 

 
5. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS    
 
 Cllr Canver (Cabinet Member for Environment)  will attend to respond to panel 

questions within the Environment portfolio.   
 

6. TOTTENHAM HOTSPUR CPZ  (PAGES 11 - 22)  
 
 - To receive a briefing on the Councils approach to CPZ. 

(Scrutiny/Parking Service) 
 

- To receive a presentation update on plans for the Tottenham Hotspur CPZ. 
(Parking  Service) 

 
7. STRATEGIC PARKING  ISSUES AHEAD OF THE TOTTENHAM HOTSPUR 

REDEVELOPMENT    
 
 1) Report back from Phillip Lane walkabout – update on costs, funding sources and 

implementation. 
(To follow) 

(Parking Service) 
 
2) Report back from panel visit to Tottenham Hotspur Match-day 9th February 2013 

 
- Unregulated off street parking (pop up parking) 
- Blue Badge Scheme 
- Council operated car parks 

(To follow) 
(Scrutiny)  

 
3) Verbal report on other Local Authority perspectives of parking and traffic 

management on match days. 
(Scrutiny) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

8. WASTE AND RECYCLING  (PAGES 23 - 144)  
 
 1) Progress report on the implementation of recommendations arising from the interim 

report on the roll-out of the new waste and recycling service: 
 - Update on recommendations 
 - Update on case studies 
 - Complaints audit (to follow) 

 (Single Front Line) 
 
2) Recycling from flats 

- Report back from panel visit to 6 flatted developments on 25th February 
2013 

(Scrutiny) 
 

- Report back from evidence gathering session on 4th March 2013: 
o Waste Watch 
o London Boroughs of Hammersmith & Fulham and Hackney 
o Local Registered Housing Providers 

(Scrutiny) 
 

3) Further policy options for increasing recycling 
 
- Report back from evidence gathering session held on 4th March 2013: 

o Single Front Line 
o Greater London Authority 
o London Boroughs of Croydon, Ealing and Lambeth. 

(Scrutiny) 
 

4) Report back (verbal) from panel visit to Eco Park and Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF) on the 18th March. 

(Scrutiny) 
 
 

9. STRATEGIC ENFORCEMENT    
 
 The panel to the discuss scope and approach of a future review of enforcement 

functions of the council in particular relation to: 
1) Audit of enforceable functions; 
2) Criteria for enforceable action (e.g. cost, public interest); 
3) Partnership working and information sharing protocols. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

10. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT WITH THE PLANNING AND LICENSING PROCESS  
(PAGES 145 - 190)  

 
 For the panel to discuss the nature and scope of a future review in this area.  The 

current Statement of Community Involvement (planning) is attached for reference. 
(Scrutiny) 

 
 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 To agree a further meeting date for April 2013.  

 
12. WORK PROGRAMME    
 
 To review current work programme for 2012/13.  

 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 
 
David McNulty 
Head of Local Democracy  
and Member Services  
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Martin Bradford x 6950 
Policy Officer 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
0208 489 6950 
Martin.bradford@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Thursday, 14 March 2013 

 
 
 
 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Minutes of the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel 8th January 2013 
 
Present:  Cllrs Alexander, Bloch, Gibson, McNamara (Chair), Stanton and 

Weber 
 
Also present: Cllr Bevan 
 
Attending:  Daliah Barrett (Lead Licensing Officer), Ann Cunningham (Head 

Traffic Management), Phil Harris (Assistant Director, Adults and 
Housing), Eubert Malcolm (Enforcement Response Manager), 
Stephen McDonnell (Assistant Director, Single Front Line), Eamon 
McGoldrick (Director of Housing Management), Chris Roberts-Wray 
(Team Leader Parking Projects) and Gary Weston (Parking 
Infrastructure Manager). 

 
1. Apologies for absence 
 
1.1 Cllr Canver  

 
2. Declarations of interest 
 
2.1 Cllr Stanton declared an interest as a board member of Homes for Haringey and 

would thus exclude himself from housing related items on the agenda. 
  
3. Urgent Business. 
 
3.1 None received. 
 
4. Minutes of previous meetings 
  
 24th September (Waste and recycling) 
4.1 The panel sought to clarify how issues that were not resolved by the waste 

contractor (Veolia) were dealt with.  It was noted that in most instances, such cases 
were brought to the attention of Single Front Line Service via a local Councillor when 
further investigation would then take place.    

 
4.2 The panel noted one instance (Jacksons Lane) where waste collections had been 

missed in 6 of the past 10 weeks and although this had been rectified each week, 
missed collections continued to occur.  It was noted that Single Front Line were 
aware of this specific case and had been escalated with Veolia management to help 
resolve this ongoing problem.  The panel noted that both the Refuse Manager and 
the Recycling Manager had visited affected householders to apologise. 

 
4.3 To ensure that all actions agreed by the panel were followed up, it was suggested 

that that the action points should be confirmed with the Chair and a subsequent list 
circulated to the Panel and attending officers.   

 
Agreed:  Action points that arise from the business of future meetings should be 

tabulated and distributed to relevant officers and panel members.  Actions 
will be monitored by the panel at future meetings. 

 
4.4 The panel agreed the minutes of the panel meetings of the 24th September and the 4 

December.  
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 

2 | P a g e  

 

5. Budget Scrutiny 
 
5.1 The panel noted and agreed the recommendations approved by Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee at its meeting in December 2012.  The panel noted that these 
recommendations would be collated (with recommendations from other scrutiny 
panels and the main Overview & Scrutiny Committee) and submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration in February 2013.  

 
6. Cabinet Member Questions – Cllr Bevan, Housing 
 
6.1 The Cabinet Member for Housing (Cllr Bevan) responded to questions from panel 

members.  The following is a summary of the key issues discussed by the panel. 
 
6.2 Members of the panel sought to assess whether homes within the Sheridan housing 

complex (N8) were on the reserve list and likely to upgraded within Decent Homes 
Programme.  The Cabinet member indicated that  

 
Agreed: That a short note is circulated to the panel regarding Sheridan Housing 

(N8) and inclusion within the Decent Homes Programme.  
 
6.3 The panel discussed the improvements being made to social housing within the 

Decent Homes Programme.  The panel sought further clarification as to whether 
individual homes that were assessed to need a range of improvements could have 
individual elements of this work prioritised for completion in the works schedule (e.g. 
a property may need a new kitchen and double glazing, but tenant would like to 
prioritise double glazing). 

 
Agreed:  That a short briefing to be provided to the panel on the Decent Homes 

Programme (works schedule and priorities). 
 
6.4 The panel discussed the problem of ASB in social housing and the impact that this 

had on neighbouring local residents and communities.  The panel noted that there 
was a prescribed process that officers follow to resolve such problems, and 
depending on the circumstances of individual cases, this can be a lengthy process.  
The panel noted that if the property had been sublet, the Council may need to obtain 
the consent of the named tenancy holder for appropriate enforcement action.  

 
6.5 The panel noted the action that Homes for Haringey (HfH) has taken to indentify and 

remove those tenants that sublet their property as this is in contravention of their 
tenancy agreement.  It was noted that HfH undertakes systematic occupancy checks 
on around 20% of properties it manages per year.  In addition, the service will also 
investigate possible tenancy contraventions as identified by members of the public.   

 
6.6 The panel noted that there had been a significant increase in the identification and 

repossession of properties that had been sublet in Haringey: in 2011/12, 12 such 
properties were repossessed, though data for 2012/13 would suggest a threefold 
increase (27 cases at 9 months).   

 
Agreed:  The panel requested a short briefing on the occupancy check process and 

recent amendments made to make this process more robust. 
 

Page 2



 

3 | P a g e  

 

7. Resident Scrutiny Panels (and scrutiny at Homes for Haringey) 
 
 Scrutiny 
7.1 The Director of Housing Management presented a briefing on scrutiny arrangements 

in Homes for Haringey (HfH).  The panel noted that in addition to the Environment 
and Housing Scrutiny Panel, scrutiny is also undertaken by a number of HfH bodies 
which include the Performance Committee and the newly formed Residents Scrutiny 
Panel.  

 
7.2 The Resident Scrutiny Panel aims to provide a residents perspective (both tenants 

and leaseholders) of the services being provided through Homes for Haringey.  The  
 Resident Scrutiny Panel had completed a pilot review of the Winter Maintenance 

Programme and is currently assessing the Repairs Service (report 2013). 
 
7.3 The Performance Committee of HfH meets five times per annum and has agreed to 

scrutinise one topic (central to its core business) at each meeting. In addition, a 
small number of topics will be looked at in greater depth throughout the course of the 
year. 

 
7.4 The panel agreed that it would be helpful if the Chairs of all three scrutiny bodies 

were to meet in the near future as this would provide an opportunity to discuss and 
plan future scrutiny work plans.  The panel hoped that this would contribute to the 
development of a more coordinated approach to the scrutiny of housing issues in 
Haringey.  The meeting would also help to map out the areas of scrutiny 
responsibility of each body and which housing bodies are being held to account, 
aiming to learn more about the work of other panels and avoid duplication of effort. 

 
Agreed: That the Chairs of each of the scrutiny bodies meet to discuss current and 

planned scrutiny work, housing bodies held to account and ways in which 
these bodies may collaborate in the future (February 2013). 

 
7.5 The panel also agreed that it would be helpful to know the current membership of the 

Homes for Haringey Board. 
 

Agreed: That the membership of the Homes for Haringey Board is circulated to the 
panel.  

 
 Waste and recycling issues 
7.6 The panel discussed the issue of waste and recycling collection on local social 

housing estates and measures that could be adopted to help increase recycling.  
(This had been an issue arising from other work of the panel in respect of the new 
waste and recycling collection system).  From this discussion, there appeared to be 
two key issues: 
§ Recycling rates were low (structural issues with estates); 
§ The number of paladin bins on estates (there were perceived to be too many). 

 
7.7 Single Front Line noted that the challenges of recycling on estates was widely 

recognised and that there was a need to increase the recycling participation rate and 
the amount of waste which households recycled.  Single Front Line also reported to 
the panel that: 
§ There was a need to rationalise waste receptacles; 

Page 3



 

4 | P a g e  

 

§ Increased frequency of waste collection would result in increased costs; 
§ Capital investment was needed to upgrade container sites; 
§ £600k had been received from Department of Communities and Local 

Government to roll out food waste collection on local estates. 
 

7.8 It was noted that the panel intended to complete the second phase of its work with 
the waste and recycling service over the coming months and would need to develop 
and agree outcomes for this.  In addition to work on local council housing estates, 
this would encompass the broader policy options for increasing recycling rates (e.g. 
incentive schemes or enforcement options).  The panel requested that key services 
are consulted in developing objectives for the second part of its recycling work. 

 
Agreed: That Single Front Line and Housing services are consulted to identify 

specific outcomes for possible inclusion within part 2 of waste and 
collection review (Feb 2013). 

 
Estate Inspections 

7.9 The Director of Housing Management presented a briefing on estate inspections 
within Homes for Haringey (HfH).  It was noted that managing external areas in 
estates (e.g. pavement repairs, parking enforcement, street cleaning) was 
challenging because of the number of different services and contractors involved.  

 
7.10  The panel noted that there were 37 Tenancy Management Officers (TMO) who lead 

local estate inspections to identify issues of concern and to plan any remedial action 
necessary. Local councillors are notified and invited to attend such inspections.    

 
7.11 In evidence submitted by HfH and confirmed from their own experience, panel 

members noted that there were a number of weaknesses within the current estate 
inspection system: 
§ The number of works left outstanding from one inspection to another; 
§ A lack of staff experience / expertise to ensure that appropriate action can be 

taken to ensure the completion of indentified works (who and where to go for 
problem resolution); 

§ TMOs do not have access to a budget (capital/ revenue) for estate repairs which 
may impede works completion; 

§ Services are not flexible enough to respond to minor repairs/ problems. 
 
7.12 In recognition of the above, HFH planned to make a number of improvements to the 

inspection system to be effective from April 2013.  These included: 
§ Establishment of four Quality Assurance Officers who will: 

o Monitor client contracts (e.g. Veolia, Wing, caretaking, cleaning) 
o Lead estate walkabouts (greater consistency and more accurate 

specification of work required and completion) 
§ Dedicated estate environmental budget for housing management 
§ Increase capital funding from £250k to £500k for small / medium environmental 

improvements 
§ Establish a mobile operative team (2 operatives and vehicle) to undertake small 

works (e.g. chute clearance, graffiti removal, removal of signage) 
§ Estate service officers will be provided with appropriate equipment to undertake 

minor repairs without recourse to a more formal works order. 

Page 4



 

5 | P a g e  

 

 
7.13 The panel noted that surveyors often accompanied TMO’s on estate inspections 

which it was suggested, could be indicative of TMO’s lack of confidence in identifying 
works needed and any necessary corrective actions.  It was noted that within the 
proposed changes (outlined above) Quality Assurance Officers will have more 
expertise and experience which will negate the need for surveyors. 

 
7.14 The panel welcomed the planned changes for the estate inspection process and 

hoped that these would deliver improved and speedier outcomes for local estate 
residents. 

 
8. Cabinet Member Questions – Cllr Canver 
 
 Q & A  
8.1 Apologies were received from Cllr Canver who was unwell and unable to attend the 

meeting. 
 
 Waste and recycling recommendations – part 1  
8.2 The panel noted that the recommendations from the interim report on the waste and 

recycling service had been presented to Cabinet in November and a response 
provided at its December meeting.  It was noted that with the exception of two, all 
recommendations had been accepted by Cabinet. 

 
8.3 The panel were concerned about the process through which scrutiny panel 

recommendations were approved.  It was noted that at present, recommendations of 
the panel need to be agreed by the main Overview & Scrutiny Committee and 
subsequently presented and approved by Cabinet.   It was the view of the panel that 
this process was lengthy and may not be responsive or flexible enough to respond to 
recommendations made.   

 
8.4 The panel agreed that whilst recommendations that affected council policy should 

obtain Cabinet approval, those recommendations which were operational in nature 
could be approved by the Cabinet member themselves through a more informal 
process.  The panel indicated that if such a two tier system could be agreed, this 
would help to create a more streamlined decision making process. 

 
Agreed:  That the Chair of the Environment & Housing Scrutiny Panel would 

approach the Chair of Overview & Scrutiny and the Chairs of other 
scrutiny panels to indentify and agree new arrangements for approval of 
recommendations.  This can then be followed by a meeting of Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee and the full Cabinet. 

 
8.5 The panel noted that there had been some problems with the Christmas collection 

times with waste and recycling not being collected on the specified dates.  The panel 
understood that this problem was due to issues with the Veolia website which was 
not sophisticated enough to include Bank Holidays and therefore displayed 
inaccurate collection dates.   

 
Agreed:  The panel agreed that on future Bank Holidays, if the Veolia website could 

not be updated appropriately a ‘special notice’ should be placed on the 
website informing residents of clear up arrangements. 

Page 5



 

6 | P a g e  

 

 
8.6 The panel acknowledged that Single Front Line had been very supportive of its work 

with the new waste and collection recycling service and had responded quickly to 
issues raised.  It was agreed that Single Front Line would provide an update to the 
panel (briefing/ future panel meeting) on its agreed recommendations and on the 
cases study areas where the panel visited. 

 
Agreed:  That an update be provided on the implementation of the waste and 

recycling recommendations (part 1) and on the case study areas visited 
by the panel (briefing at next meeting). 

 
9. Integrating Council Enforcement Functions 
 
9.1 Officers from Single Front Line, Enforcement Response and Licensing presented the 

report on integrating council enforcement functions and responded to questions from 
the panel.  A summary of the main points of this discussion is given below. 

 
9.2 It was noted that in total (including both new and variations) approximately 90 

licensing applications are received each year.  Licensing and Planning services 
adhere to two different regulatory codes which may appear to give rise to 
‘contradictory’ conditions.  For example, where an application is received to extend 
the licensing hours of a license that go beyond those agreed under planning 
conditions.  It was noted that in 2012, there were 7 occasions when the premises did 
not have the appropriate planning permission. 

 
9.3 The panel heard that all licensing applications are routinely sent to Responsible 

Authorities to comment on the proposed application.  The panel noted that there are 
a number of Responsible Authorities that are consulted within the licensing process 
and these include: 

 
§ Police Authority § Director of Public Health 
§ Fire Authority § Social Services (Child Protection) 
§ Planning § Building Control 
§ Health & Safety § Trading Standards 
§ Food Protection § Noise Enforcement 
 

9.4 The panel noted that in order for evidence to be considered from a Responsible 
Authority (or any other interested party, including members of the public) this must 
be relevant to the application being considered and relate to the four licensing 
objectives, which are: 

 
§ the prevention of crime and disorder; 
§ public safety;  
§ the prevention of public nuisance; 
§ and the protection of children from harm. 

 
9.6 The panel heard that Responsible Authorities will respond to applications where 

appropriate.  The panel indicated that it would like to receive a summary of licensing 
application responses received from Responsible Authorities, especially any other 
departments of the council and the metropolitan Police. 

 

Page 6



 

7 | P a g e  

 

Agreed:  That a short briefing is provided to the panel on local Responsible 
Authorities detailing: 
§ the responses received from Responsible Authorities to licensing 

applications from Jan 2010-Jan2013. 
§ contact details for Responsible Authorities.  

 
9.7 The panel noted that although there was not a central register where all Responsible 

Authorities could enter enforcement data for local premises, a Council wide database 
(M3) was used.  Here data could be recorded on a wide range of enforcement issues 
(including data used for regulatory and enforcement purposes as well as ‘softer data’ 
(e.g. waste). Services which used this include Health & Safety, Licensing, Trading 
Standards, Food Safety and Neighbourhood Enforcement Teams). 

 
9.8 The panel noted that to ensure that there is no conflict of interest the Licensing 

Officer must remain neutral in the licensing application process. This places some 
restrictions on the nature and level of information that can be exchanged.  However, 
the Licensing Officer does maintain an overview of information submitted and if a 
trend appears (e.g. in respect of particular premises) it may have a ‘generalised 
discussion’ with another enforcement body (e.g. police) or another council 
department who are not obliged to be neutral. 

 
9.9 In terms of advice available to residents within the licensing process, the panel noted 

that although there was no formal advice service applicant’s advice notes are 
published and available through the Council website. A booklet ‘The Licensing Law 
and You’ is also available on the website.  The panel also noted that where 
appropriate, mediation meetings were encouraged with residents (other interested 
parties). 
 

9.10 The panel noted that the broader public perception may not recognise the legal 
duties of enforcement officers across the council which may inhibit their ability to 
share information and limit or constrain the degree to which they may work together.  
The panel were of the view that more should be done to inform and educate local 
residents about the roles of local enforcement teams and how their help can be 
solicited.  

 
Agreed: That all Responsible Authorities and other Council departments with 

enforceable functions are consulted as part of the scope for the 
Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel scope of strategic enforcement 
(Feb 2013). 

 
10.  Strategic parking issues ahead of the Tottenham Hotspur redevelopment 
 
 Scoping Report 
10.1 The panel discussed the proposed objectives and associated work plans as set out 

in the scoping report. A summary of the key issues discussed by the panel is 
presented below. 

 
10.2 The panel indicated that as the new Tottenham Hotspur development was billing 

itself as a leisure destination for 365 days a year, this should be reflected in parking 
controls and broader traffic management arrangements.   Officers indicated that 

Page 7



 

8 | P a g e  

 

Traffic Management would continue to monitor the situation and adapt parking or 
traffic controls as necessary.  

 
10.3 The operation of the Blue Badge mobility scheme on match days was also discussed 

by the panel.  As there are less parking restrictions for Blue Badge holders there was 
a concern that this could be exploited through incorrect or fraudulent use of badges.  
It was suggested that this should be included within the scope. Officers from Traffic 
Management indicated that it would not be viable (self financing) to employ a 
dedicated Blue Badge monitoring officer. 

 
Agreed:  That a briefing is prepared on the operation of the Blue Badge scheme in 

Haringey together with monitoring and fraud identification processes. 
 
10.4 The panel noted that there had been some discussion on the proposed supermarket 

and the possibility of football fans being able to use the car park on match days.  
This car park had a capacity for 400 cars. 

 
10.5 The panel noted that there was often spare capacity at Bury Road Car Park (400 

spaces) and discussed whether this could be used as a parking solution on 
Tottenham Hotspur match days.  It was suggested that this could be marketed as a 
park and ride scheme which would have the added benefit of attracting additional 
footfall to Wood Green High Road.  Parking Service officers indicated that they 
would consider this option when assessing a range of parking options for the area. 

 
Agreed:  That two additional objectives be included within the parking scope: 1) 

Assess parking restrictions around schools 2) Use of Blue Badge scheme 
on match days. 

 
Agreed:  That given the scope of the work and the inclusion of additional 

objectives, the timescales for the planned work should be discussed with 
the Traffic Management service and amended accordingly. 

 
Phillip Lane Walkabout 

10.6 Officers from Traffic Management presented the findings from a walkabout that was 
conducted on Phillip Lane (Tottenham) with the Chair of the EHSP and 5 other 
Councillors from Tottenham, West Green and Bruce Grove Wards in December 
2012.   The aim of this walkabout was to identify possible improvements to parking 
and traffic management schemes and to ascertain if this could be a viable approach 
for road traffic solutions across the Tottenham area as part of the review being 
undertaken by the panel. 

 
10.7 The panel noted that 32 issues were indentified for rectification or adjustment from 

this walkabout. Those issues identified included: 
§ Unnecessary double yellow lines which may prohibit business use; 
§ Removal of conflicting signage 
§ Faded yellow lines (double or single); 
§ Bus stop ‘box’ too large; 
§ Bus stop ‘box’ faded; 
§ Controlled parking space on a bend in the road (safety issue). 

 

Page 8



 

9 | P a g e  

 

10.8 The panel noted that whilst some of the indentified works or improvements could be 
enacted at minimal cost, other solutions would require additional capital/ revenue 
spend by the service.  The panel also indicated that it would be useful to have an 
indication of the order in which identified issues may need to be addressed (i.e. 
safety). As a next step, the panel indicated that it would be helpful if Traffic 
Management could identify what resources would be needed to implement those 
actions identified from the walkabout.  

 
Agreed:  That Traffic Management should indicate what resources would be 

required to correct 32 traffic/parking issues identified from the Phillip Lane 
walkabout together with and priorities for action and completion 
timescales. 

 
10.9 The panel noted that it would be important to publicise the assessments of this 

walkabout and any actions implemented as a result.  The panel noted that once 
further information was available (i.e. resource data) it would assess the viability of 
this approach as a process to help identify local traffic and parking solutions more 
widely across Tottenham.  

 
10.10The panel confirmed that it would be talking to parking services in other local 

authorities as part of its evidence gathering to help meet the scrutiny objectives set 
out in the agreed scoping report. 

 
11. Waste and recycling 
 
11.1 The panel discussed the Cabinet response to its recommendations within item 8.  

There was insufficient time for the panel to receive the presentation on updated 
consultation responses from the waste and recycling survey and the cabinet member 
for Environment was not present.  A copy of the presentation would be distributed 
with the finalised minutes.   

 
12.  Work programme report 
 
12.1 The panel noted the work programme report. 
 
13.  Future meetings 
 
13.1 The next meeting of the panel was confirmed to be at 18.30 on the 21st March 2013. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Briefing for: Environment & Housing Scrutiny Panel, 8th January 2013 

Title: The Council’s approach to Controlled Parking Zones. 

Purpose of 
briefing: 

To provide background information on the Council’s approach to 
Controlled Parking Zones in Haringey. 

Lead 
Officer(s): 

 
Ann Cunningham, Head of Traffic Management 
 
Martin Bradford, Scrutiny Officer 
 

 

1.  Introduction 
1.1 The following report outlines the Councils approach to Controlled Parking Zones 

which is being considered by the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel as part of 
its work programme for 2012/13.  This report will contribute the work of the scrutiny 
panel in assessing the strategic parking issues ahead of the Tottenham Hotspur 
redevelopment.  

 
1.2 The report provides an overview of controlled parking zones in Haringey and covers 

the following areas: 
§ Policy context; 
§ Controlled Parking Zones; 
§ Controlled Parking Zones in Haringey (distribution, hours of operation, 

authorisation, extension, fast track policy, permits, implementation and 
operational costs, enforcement, current issues and future challenges); 

§ Haringey Transport Commission; 
 
2.  Background policy context 
2.1 Both nationally and locally demand for road space is increasing and transport 

authorities need to develop policies which meet the often conflicting needs of 
different road users (e.g. car users, cyclists, public transport).  In addition, policy 
objectives also have to give regard to wider environmental objectives such as the 
need to reduce carbon emissions and limit air pollution. 

 
2.2 Demand for road space remains strong, particularly in urban areas where there is a 

high population density.  Despite the growth of developed public transportation 
systems car ownership in urban areas has not diminished, particularly in London.  
Thus while national figures indicate that the proportion of households not owning a 

Agenda Item 10Page 67 Agenda Item 6Page 11



 

2 | P a g e  
 

car has fallen, in London, the proportion of households that do not own a car has 
remained almost constant at around 40 percent since the mid-1980s.1   

 
2.3 More locally, the proportion of households in Haringey that do not own a car (53%) is 

similar to that of other inner London boroughs.  However, the proportion of 
households that own two or more cars in Haringey (11%) is the highest when 
compared among all other inner London boroughs. 

 
2.4 Although parking controls are tools to help manage demand for car usage, they are 

also part of a wider strategy to improve road safety and to make the road network a 
more pleasant environment for all road users.  The aim of parking controls can be 
summarised as thus, to: 
§ ease congestion and improve public transport; 
§ maintain safety of all road users (including pedestrians); 
§ contribute to the social and economic sustainability of local town centres by 

improving accessibility; 
§ ensure limited parking capacity is available to those who need it;  
§ support initiatives to meet environmental targets. 

 
2.5 Local transport policy is set out in the Local Implementation Plan (LIP).  Guided by 

national and regional transport plans, such as the Mayors Transport Strategy, the 
LIP describes how the Council will meet the transport needs of local residents and 
businesses.  It provides details of local transport objectives and how these will be 
implemented by the Council.  

 
2.6 Contained within the LIP is the Parking and Enforcement Plan (PEP), which provides 

the policy framework that guides and informs the Council’s parking management 
activities.  The PEP has a number of strategic objectives, including to:  
 
§ Reduce the need to travel especially by car and encourage sustainable travel; 
§ Manage traffic levels to help reduce congestion and improve the environment; 
§ Develop an efficient and effective transport system to promote regeneration; 
§ Promote social and economic revitalisation of local town centres; 
§ Support borough initiatives to improve air quality. 

 
2.7 A number of specific parking objectives are contained within the PEP, which are 

summarised below. 
 

The Council will: By: 

Meet the needs of all 
road users 

§ Managing overall parking  supply and allocate space 
based on needs and priorities 

§ Support parking and loading requirements of businesses 
§ Support safe and efficient operation of public transport  

Support effective 
parking management 

§ Coordinate management of on and off-street parking and 
ensure a comprehensive and complimentary approach 

§ Allocate permits based on transparent principles and in 
accordance with hierarchy of parking  need 

Improve sustainable 
access 

§ Seek the provision of cycle parking in new developments 
§ Provide secure cycle parking in high demand areas 

                                                
1
 Transport for London Travel in London Key trends and developments Report number 1 

Page 68Page 12



 

3 | P a g e  
 

§ Ensure that parking  management is supportive of 
sustainable travel initiatives 

Meet environmental 
objectives 

§ Supports local environmental improvements 

 
2.8 Following a reorganisation in 2011/12, all road and parking services have merged 

within a new Traffic Management Service within the Council.  This new service 
ensures that the Council can effectively manage and coordinate the different 
activities that impact on vehicle and pedestrian traffic in the borough.  The Traffic 
Management Service includes:  

 
§ Consultation, design and 

implementation of parking controls 
including CPZs  

§ Traffic and parking enforcement and  
associated services i.e. suspensions, 
parking permits, representations and 
appeals 

§ Installation and maintenance of pay & 
display machines,  

§ Coordinating street works (including 
the London Permit Scheme)2 

§ Management of CCTV service – 
community safety surveillance and 
traffic enforcement  

§ Concessionary travel 

§ Car park management and 
maintenance  

 

 (N.B A full organisational chart is contained in appendix E) 

 
3. Controlled Parking Zones 
3.1 A controlled parking zone (CPZ) is defined in Regulation 4 of the Traffic Signs 

Regulations and General Directions 2002, which in effect, is an area where kerbside 
parking is controlled.  Parking may be controlled by the use of designated spaces for 
parking and loading as well as yellow lines for waiting and/or loading, each of which 
may have operational restrictions. 
 

3.2 CPZs are generally introduced on roads where local residents have problems 
parking near their homes.  These local parking pressures may be as a result of non-
residents’ vehicles being parked often for long periods of time as they visit a local 
attraction.  Some common attractors which create local parking pressures include 
rail/tube stations, local town centres or local leisure services. 
 

3.3 CPZs are an effective way of managing parking demand and are widely used by 
local authorities.  The benefits of controlled parking may include: 
§ Improved safety, with better visibility at junctions; 
§ easier access for emergency services, delivery and removal vans; 
§ reduced traffic and pollution; 
§ reduced visual impact of cars on the street environment. 

 
3.4  All on-street parking in a CPZ is controlled during the times shown on the zone entry 

plates (signs which are put up at all entry points into the zone).  Parking is not 
allowed in parking bays during the operational hours of the CPZ without a valid 
permit. Kerbside space not covered by a parking bay are generally subject to single 

                                                
2
 The issue and monitoring of permits for street works to minimise disruption. 

Page 69Page 13



 

4 | P a g e  
 

yellow line controls which apply during the controlled hours of the zone unless 
otherwise indicated on the signs. Double yellow lines are often installed at key points 
within a CPZ, such as around junctions, and these indicate a 24-hour parking 
prohibition. 

 
3.5 Parking bays can either be permit holder bays, “Pay & Display” bays or shared use 

(permit & “pay & display”) bays and the operational hours of CPZ is displayed is on 
the signs associated with those bays.  Residents can generally purchase permits if 
they, or their visitors, wish to park in the designated bays during the operational 
times of a CPZ. I Parking permits are only issued to eligible residents and 
businesses within a CPZ.  Those with a disability (i.e. Blue Badge holders) can 
generally park their vehicle for free and without time limit in a permit holders bay 
provided that a valid Blue Badge is displayed. 

 
4.  Controlled Parking Zones in Haringey 
 
 Distribution 
4.1 There are currently 16 CPZ areas in Haringey.  These are predominantly in south 

and central parts of the borough and reflect the need to develop parking controls as 
a result of local attractors such as shopping centres (e.g. Wood Green or Crouch 
End) rail/tube stations (e.g. Bounds Green or Seven Sisters) and other local leisure 
attractions (e.g. Tottenham Hotspur Football Stadium).   

 
4.2 A map of all operational CPZs (as of July 2012) is contained in Appendix A. 
 
 Hours of operation 
4.3 The days and times in which individual CPZs operate vary according to the nature of 

local parking pressures and the needs of local residents.  Thus, the central Wood 
Green CPZ is operational from 8am to 10pm Monday through to Sunday to reflect 
the significant parking pressures generated by this major shopping and work 
destination.  Conversely, the Tottenham Hotspur CPZ only operates at specific times 
and days and help to manage local traffic and parking demand on match days. 

 
4.4 Other CPZs, such as those around tube or rail stations, may operate for a short 

period of time on weekdays to deter commuters who may otherwise drive and leave 
their cars in the vicinity of local stations.  A full list of CPZs in Haringey detailing the 
days and times in which these are in operation are described in Table 1 below.  

Page 70Page 14



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Table 1 – CPZs in Haringey (days and times of operation)  

CPZ Days of operation Time of operation Pay and 
display 
charges ( 
where 

applicable)  

Belmont Mon-Fri 08.00-18.30 £1.90 

Bounds Green Mon-Fri 10.00-12.00 £1.90 

Bruce Grove Mon-Sat 08.00-18.30 £1.90 

Crouch End A 
 
Crouch End B 

Mon-Fri 
 

Mon-Fri 

10.00-12.00 
 

12.00-14.00 

£3.00 
 

£3.00 

Finsbury Park  
Finsbury Par B & C 
 
 
 

 
Mon-Sat 

Match Days & 
Park Events 

Sundays & PH 

 
08:30-18.30 
08:30-20:30 

 
12.00-16.00 

 
 

£1.90 

Fortis Green Mon-Fri 11.00-13.00 N/A 

Green Lanes 
    A 
    B 
    B extension 

 
Mon-Sat 
Mon-Fri 
Mon-Sat 

 
08.00-18.30 
08.00-18.30 
08.00-18.30 

 
 

£3.00 

Highgate Mon-Fri 10.00-12.00 £3.00 

Myddleton Road Stop 
and Shop 

Mon-Fri 09.00-18.00 £1.90 

Seven Sisters Mon-Sat 08.00-18.30 £1.90 

Stroud Green Mon-Fri 12.00-14.00 £1.90 

Tottenham Hale Mon-Fri 08.30-18.30 £1.90 

Tottenham Hotspur 
Match day 

Mon-Fri 
 

Sun & PH 

17.00-20.30 
 

12.00-16.30 

        £1.90* 

Wood Green 
Inner 
Outer 

 
Mon-Sun 
Mon-Sat 

 
08.00-22.00 
08.00-18.30 

 
£3.00 

Woodside Mon-Fri 08.00-18.30 £1.90 

*this pay and display is not specific the Spurs CPZ and supports local businesses 
through the week.  
 
Authorisation  

4.5 The Council’s approach to CPZ introduction has much improved in recent years and 
is now far more resident lead. The Council only proceeds to any stage of 
consultation on the introduction of a CPZ where there is evidence of demand for 
wider parking controls from an appropriate representation of that local community. 

  
4.6  This has resulted in increased dialogue between the Council and residents. This is 

not only much more customer focused, but with residents fully involved at the earliest 
stage, schemes now meet their local needs.  

Page 71Page 15



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
 

4.7 In Haringey, there are three phases to the authorisation and implementation of a 
proposed CPZ: 
§ Public consultation; 
§ Statutory Process; 
§ Works on site. 
 

4.8 In the Public Consultation stage, the Council will consult with local residents and 
businesses to ascertain the level of support for a proposed CPZ.   Focus Group 
meetings are held to provide part of the governance and consultation necessary to 
enable Council Officers and the Cabinet Member to respond more quickly to the 
needs of residents. This is one part of the dialogue between residents, Ward 
Councillors and officers of the Council. The formal or statutory consultation being the 
other.  

 

4.9 The Statutory Process stage is the legal part of the process and is open to any 
interested party to make a representation regarding the council’s proposals.3  As part 
of the statutory process, a Traffic Management Order4 is made, which requires that 
notices are published in the local press and displayed on site to inform of the 
council’s intentions.  A statutory period of 21 days is provided for any interested party 
to make a representation on the proposed scheme.  As part of the statutory process, 
a formal consultation document is delivered to all residents within the proposed CPZ 
area and other statutory bodies (e.g. Transport for London, fire service, police 
service, ambulance service) are consulted. 

 
4.10 All letters of objection or support received within the 21 day period are considered by 

the Council as part of the statutory process.  There are however, legal requirements 
about the weight given to various factors when introducing parking controls and the 
interests of the owners and occupiers of properties on the affected roads.  Whilst the 
council will need to assess the impact of the scheme in relation to safety, impact on 
local amenities, environmental effects and passage of public service vehicles, 
particular regard has to be given to: 
§ the need to maintain the free movement of traffic;  
§ the need to maintain reasonable accesses to premises; and  
§ the extent to which off-street parking is available in the neighbourhood. 

 
4.11 All consultation representations are recorded and compiled within a report.  This 

includes details of the final proposed scheme including any changes which have 
been made as a result of the consultation.  Once the report and scheme 
recommendations have been approved by the Cabinet Member or relevant 
Committee, work can begin on site to implement the scheme. 

 
4.12 When it has been decided that the scheme should proceed, a notification document 

is delivered to all properties within the agreed CPZ area notifying them of the council 

                                                
3
 This can include those not directly within the CPZ, but in adjacent areas.   

4 A Traffic Management Order is a legal document we are required to produce whenever we want to put new 

parking restrictions in place or amend existing ones.  
 

Page 72Page 16



 

7 | P a g e  
 

decision and when works will start on site.  Work will commence once the following 
have been completed: 
§ completion of the Traffic Management Order; 
§ letting contract to complete specified work (installation); and 
§ work programming. 
 

4.13 Details of recent and current CPZ applications including consultation documents, 
works notices and other associated reports are recorded on the Council parking 
consultation web pages.  
  
Fast Track Policies  

4.14 A fast track process for introducing extensions to existing CPZs was approved in 
2008. The new approach allows the Council to be more responsive to the concerns 
of local residents and reduces the time it would usually take to introduce a CPZ by 
omitting the public consultation stage and going straight to the statutory consultation 
stage. Residents that reside in adjacent roads to the CPZ can petition the council for 
inclusion within the existing CPZ.  If there is sufficient evidence of support (a majority 
of road residents in favour), this will replace the first public consultation stage. 

 
4.15 The full CPZ process would usually take approximately 18 Months. Undertaking an 

extension via the Fast Track CPZ process will usually reduce the length of this 
process to 9-months (as the Council would commence at 21-day statutory 
notification process).   The fast track process is contained in Appendix B. 

 
4.16 The council has also adopted the experimental process which has further reduced 

the timeframe for the introduction of a CPZ to approximately 6 months.  The 
experimental process can be applied to both existing and new CPZ schemes. Within 
the experimental process, the proposed scheme is authorised and introduced after 
the public consultation process.  Here an experimental traffic order of 18 month 
duration is issued on the following basis: 
§ 0-6 months, the Council will continue accept all representations from the public 
§ 6-12 months, a decision is taken and amendments made where possible,  
§ 12-18 months, the experiment continues then run for a further 6 month, and if all 

if agreed, the order is made permanent before the 18 month period is up. 
 
 Residents parking permits 
4.17 Individual residents who live in a CPZ area may apply for a resident parking permit.  

To obtain a resident parking permit residents must be aged 18 years or over, be the 
registered owner (or keeper) of the car and have a valid tax certificate.  Individual 
parking permits are not transferable, and relate to corresponding vehicle cited on the 
permit. 
 

4.18 The cost of a resident parking permit is based on the CO2 emissions if the vehicle 
was registered on or after 23rd March 2001.  Permit costs for vehicles registered 
before this date are based on the engine size.  A summary of relevant costs for 
these two schemes is summarised below. 

Page 73Page 17



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Vehicles registered on or after 23rd March 2001 

CO2 Emission Band 
 

First Permit 
(Annual) 

Second and Subsequent  
Permit per Household 

(up to 100 CO2 g/km - including 
electric vehicles) 

£20.60 £20.60 

(101-150 CO2 g/km) £51.50 £82.40 

(151-185 CO2 g/km) £103 £133.90 

(186 CO2 g/km and over) £154.50 £206 

 

Vehicles registered before 23rd March 2001 

Engine Size First Permit (Annual) 
Second and Subsequent  
Permit per Household 

1549cc or less £51.50 £82.40 

1550cc to 3000cc £103 £133.90 

3001cc and above £154.50 £206 

 
4.19  Full details of all residents parking permits and associated costs are contained in 

Appendix C. 
 
 Costs of CPZs 
4.20 There are a number of implementation costs which are associated with the 

implementation of a CPZ which include: 
§ Consultation with local residents (two and possibly three rounds); 
§ Notice distribution to all households in the proposed parking zone; 
§ Physical implementation; 

o Signage 
o Pay and Display machines 
o Bay marking  

§ Staff fees. 
 
4.21 The total cost of implementing a CPZ varies in relation to the size of the prospective 

CPZ and the number of streets included within the area designated for parking 
control (for example, the size of the CPZ will determine the scale of the consultation 
required, and the amount of signage needed). It has been estimated that 
implementation costs per street is approximately £4k. 

 
4.22 There are also a number of operational costs associated with the operation of CPZ 

which include: 
§ Physical maintenance; 
§ Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO). 
§ Increased back office costs arising from higher volume transactions ie permits 

sales,  representations and appeals  

Page 74Page 18



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
4.23 The following financial data is taken from the implementation of a recent CPZ 

(extension) in Crouch End, which provides an overview of the set up and running 
cost of a CPZ: 

       

Implementation Cost £155k 

Operational Costs £151.9k 

Estimated annual revenue £222k 

Payback of set up costs 2.2 years 

 
4.24 CPZs are funded through the Capital Budget and other external sources. In 

2010/11 the parking service was allocated £600k from the capital programme for the 
installation of controlled parking.  However, in recent years this funding has been 
substantially reduced, and where currently (2012/13) £150k of capital funding is 
available.   

 
 Enforcement 
4.25 The Traffic Management Act (2004) updated traffic enforcement guidelines with the 

intention to steer local authorities to provide open and fair parking and enforcement 
policies  whilst adopting clear and prescribed guidelines for dealing with parking  
contraventions.  This legislation: 
§ Established the role of Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO) to replace parking 

attendants; 
§ Required local authorities to publish parking policies on line and to provide more 

details on how to appeal fines; 
§ Increased time limits for payment of some fines; 
§ Introduced measures to combat abuse of the Blue Badge5 system. 
 

4.26 The Councils code of practice for local parking enforcement is published in the 
Council website and is contained in appendix D. 

 
4.27 Parking in controlled areas is enforced by Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO).  CEOs 

may enforce parking through on-street patrols, the use of Closed Circuit Television 
(CCTV) or mobile enforcement units (which also carry CCTV equipment.  The 
current full staffing structure of the Traffic Management Service, including the 
number of operational CEOs, is detailed in Appendix E.  It should be noted that this 
will revised due to failure to recruit a Network Compliance Manager. 

 
4.28 Cars that do not have a valid permit or voucher during the hours in which a CPZ is in 

operation can be issued with a Penalty Charge Notice (PCN).  The PCN can be 
served on street which or by post (if this cannot be directly served by the CEO).  
Parking charges are set by London Councils and are staged at two levels depending 
on the seriousness of the parking contravention.  This is summarised in the table 
below. 

                                                
5
 The disability parking scheme. 

Page 75Page 19



 

10 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 More Serious 
(E.g. parking at bus stop, parking on 
double yellow lines, parking in a bay 

without a permit, parking on pedestrian 
crossing) 

Less serious 
(E.g. parking after the expiry of pay 

and display, re-parking in same space 
within set time, parking for longer than 

permitted, not parking correctly)  
 Full Charge Discount 

(paid within 
14 days) 

Full Charge Discount 
(paid within 
14 days) 

Band A Road 
(Wood Green 

CPZ and all bus 
lanes) 

£130 £65 £80 £40 

Band B Road 
(all other parts of 

the borough) 

£110 £55 £60 £30 

 
4.29 In 2011/12, the Council issued 169,208 parking related PCNs, of which 143,229 

were for the higher level and 25,979 were for the lower level (Figure 1).  Total 
income derived from all PCNs in 2011/12 (including those for non parking related 
traffic contraventions) amounted to £7.9 million.  Full details of local traffic and 
parking performance including income, expenditure, parking appeals and network 
management is contained in the Annual Traffic and parking Enforcement Report 
(2011/12) which is contained in Appendix F. 

 
 Figure 1 – Penalty Charge Notices issued for parking offences in Haringey 

(2009-2012) 
 

 
  
 Current issues and future challenges for controlled parking 
4.30 The current method of implementation does create displacement of vehicles onto 

peripheral roads which has a snowball effect. The displacement is created by 
residents not purchasing a permit for their vehicle, furthermore residents may choose 
not to purchase a permit for a second and subsequent vehicles as those charges are 

Page 76Page 20



 

11 | P a g e  
 

incrementally higher than the 1st permit per household. Commuters to the area may 
continue to park in the area not protected by a CPZ. 
 

4.31 The extensive regeneration program underway in Northumberland Park may require 
a different approach to the introduction of parking controls and consultation has 
already started with all ward Councillors on our approach to Phase 1 of the Spurs 
development.  
 

4.32 The parking capital program is funded through capital resources, which have 
reduced significantly in recent years. The current method of implementation is more 
costly and reduced funding will impact on our ability to respond to Local concerns.  
 

5. Parking and the Haringey Sustainable Transport Commission 
5.1 The Council set up a transport commission 2011 to advise the council on the policy 

options for better transport, fairer parking controls and greater investment in streets 
and transport services.  The Commission was made up of 11 members (including 
local Councillors, Transport for London and local transport groups) and was headed 
by an external independent academic (Professor Goodwin, University of West of 
England).   

 
5.2 In the course of its work, the Commission heard evidence on a range of parking 

related issues and from this made a number of conclusions, including the following: 
 

§ Resident demand for controlled parking can lead to an incremental growth of 
CPZ’s as neighbouring streets  seek to protect themselves from the knock on 
effects of a newly introduced CPZ 
 

§ CPZ’s are a temporary solution to parking pressures as they do not address the 
general issue of the rising level of car ownership  
 

§ The factors which give rise to parking pressures are dynamic which necessitate 
the need for periodic updating for controlled parking. 

 
5.3 In relation to the development and associated consultation for CPZs, the 

Commission noted that further clarification may be necessary in respect of:    
§ the definition of local resident demand; 
§ How are businesses consulted in CPZ development; 
§ How CPZs fit in with Economic Plans for the borough? 

 
5.4 The Commission recommended that a long term (5-10 year) vision for parking policy 

should be developed which is compatible with the availability of local road space and 
should include: 
§ Feasibility of introducing borough wide parking policy as opposed to zone by 

zone development 
§ Restrictions on parking to what can be fitted in available space without 

undermining other necessary road uses.  
 
5.5 In response, the Council confirmed that it would continue with its agreed approach of 

giving priority to residents that request a CPZ, that is, a needs led approach.  
 

Page 77Page 21



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 W

a
s
te
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
- 
U
p
d
a
te
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

1
. 
W
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 
w
a
s
te
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
 
is
 
n
o
t 
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 

(e
.g
. 
n
o
 r
o
o
m
 f
o
r 
w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
s
),
 a
 m

o
re
 

b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
is
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
w
h
ic
h
 

u
ti
lis
e
s
 
th
e
 
fu
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

re
c
e
p
ta
c
le
s
: 
b
a
g
s
; 
b
o
x
e
s
; 
b
o
x
e
s
 
w
it
h
 

b
a
g
s
; 
1
2
0
, 
2
4
0
 
&
 
3
6
0
 
lit
re
 
b
in
s
; 
fo
o
d
 

w
a
s
te
 

b
in
s
; 

h
e
s
s
ia
n
 

s
a
c
k
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
b
in
s
 
a
n
d
 
is
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
in
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 
lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
T
h
is
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ls
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
tu
rn
in
g
 t
o
 w
e
e
k
ly
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

re
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 

in
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re
 o
th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
ru
le
d
 
o
u
t 

a
s
 

u
n
w
o
rk
a
b
le
. 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
  

 T
w
o
 k
e
y
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 

to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
, 
w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
th
a
t 
w
a
s
te
 i
s
 s
to
re
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
o
v
e
rs
p
ill
. 
  

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
 f
re
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

s
o
m
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 It
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

th
e
 g
re
e
n
 b
o
x
 f
o
r 
d
ry
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 s
e
e
n
 a
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
. 

P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
, 
th
e
 g
re
e
n
 b
o
x
e
s
 w
e
re
 e
m
p
ti
e
d
 

in
to
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
in
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
in
 w
a
s
 

w
h
e
e
le
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

to
 b
e
 l
if
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
. 
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
h
e
e
le
d
 b
in
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

b
in
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
if
 

g
re
e
n
 b
o
x
e
s
 w
e
re
 s
ti
ll 
u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

s
ta
ff
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 l
e
a
n
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 

o
f 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 t
o
 e
m
p
ty
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

b
o
x
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
ro
m
 a
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 

B
o
th
 V
e
o
lia
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 b
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
a
s
te
. 
 

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 

3
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 V
e
o
lia
’s
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

T
e
a
m
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 

in
d
e
n
ti
fy
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
it
h
 s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 

a
n
d
 l
id
s
 r
a
is
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 t
h
e
n
 

v
is
it
e
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 

a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
A
s
 s
ta
te
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
m
a
lle
r/
b
ig
g
e
r 
o
r 
le
s
s
/m
o
re
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 t
h
a
n
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 m

u
s
t 
n
o
w
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
 o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
a
c
k
s
. 
S
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
is
h
 t
o
 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
c
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
x
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 d
o
 s
o
. 
  

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
S
o
u
th
w
a
rk
 s
ti
ll 

u
s
e
 g
re
e
n
 b
o
x
e
s
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
u
t 
th
e
y
 s
ti
ll 

u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
in
 m

e
th
o
d
 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 

a
n
d
 s
o
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
e
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
  

 W
h
e
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
s
, 

fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
te
p
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
th
e
n
 w
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 b
a
g
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ta
in
 

b
o
th
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 d
ry
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
. 
  

 In
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 

th
e
s
e
 a
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 s
it
e
 

v
is
it
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

F
o
r 
s
m
a
ll 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 (
1
 o
r 
2
 p
e
o
p
le
) 
w
h
o
m
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a
 s
m
a
lle
r 
w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
, 
n
o
 s
it
e
 v
is
it
 i
s
 

n
o
rm

a
lly
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 B
o
th
 V
e
o
lia
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 w
o
rk
e
d
 

w
it
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 m
u
lt
ip
le
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 H
M
O
s
 o
r 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt
e
d
 i
n
 f
la
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 s
m
a
lle
r/
b
ig
g
e
r 
o
r 
le
s
s
/m
o
re
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 t
h
a
n
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 

 

Page 24



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 w
it
h
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 m
u
lt
ip
le
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
h
e
e
lie
 b
in
s
. 
 D
if
fe
re
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 w
it
h
 w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 
lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
re
s
id
e
n
t 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 p
e
rm

it
. 
  

 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 i
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 w
e
e
k
ly
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te
. 
 I
t 
is
 

s
ti
ll 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 

w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 w
e
e
k
ly
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
id
u
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
  
 

 

2
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 
is
 
g
re
a
te
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 

o
f 
w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 b
y
 S
in
g
le
 F
ro
n
t 
L
in
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
llo
u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 
n
e
w
 
w
a
s
te
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

W
a
rd
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

w
it
h
 
a
 
lis
t 
o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
 
s
it
e
s
/ 

s
tr
e
e
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
rd
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 
a
s
s
is
t 
in
 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
in
 
th
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
e
re
 o
n
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 a
p
p
a
re
n
t.
 

 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 P
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t 
w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
h
a
s
e
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
 w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

a
 l
is
t 
o
f 
H
M
O
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
rd
 a
n
d
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 

to
 a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 l
is
t 
b
y
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
. 
 T
h
e
 l
is
t 
h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

w
it
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 (
P
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r)
. 
 W

a
rd
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
h
e
 V
e
o
lia
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
 w
h
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 d
o
o
r-

k
n
o
c
k
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 a
re
a
. 
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

V
e
o
lia
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
e
. 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 i
n
 

re
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ro
b
le
m
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
ll 
w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
re
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

lo
c
a
l 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
w
a
lk
a
b
o
u
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 w
a
rd
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

to
 r
a
is
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

Page 25



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

 W
h
e
re
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
e
it
h
e
r 

V
e
o
lia
 o
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
w
it
h
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 w
a
rd
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 a
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
is
 

w
o
rk
 o
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
. 
 

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
n
 2
2
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
 

w
e
e
k
ly
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 

to
 a
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 
 

 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 V
e
o
lia
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
h
e
re
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
ri
s
e
. 
 

 

  

3
. 
T
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
h
e
e
t 
is
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
b
in
 
ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
(e
.g
. 
la
rg
e
r 
b
in
s
, 
b
in
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
b
in
s
) 

w
h
ic
h
 
is
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 
to
 
lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 

T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
a
 ‘
H
o
w
 t
o
 

G
u
id
e
.’
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
c
e
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
d
d
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
b
le
 

to
 

re
c
y
c
le
 

a
n
d
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

v
o
lu
m
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
u
a
l 
w
a
s
te
. 
  

•
 
It
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

o
n
u
s
 

o
f 

b
ro
k
e
ri
n
g
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 e
x
p
lo
re
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 a
 g
u
id
e
 t
o
 

a
s
s
is
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 b
in
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
. 
  
T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 o
p
e
ra
te
 a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
-e
n
fo
rc
in
g
 

th
is
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rf
u
ll 
b
in
s
. 
  

 T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

th
e
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
u
t 

a
ls
o
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
r 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
  

 

A
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
e
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

p
h
a
s
e
 3
 t
h
e
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 t
e
a
m
’s
 w
o
rk
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
. 
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
f 
s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 v
is
it
s
 w
ill
 

re
-e
n
fo
rc
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 t
o
 

re
c
y
c
le
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

Page 26



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

o
n
 

b
in
 

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 
in
 
s
h
a
re
d
 
p
re
m
is
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
s
t 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
t 

th
e
 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
o
s
e
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
th
e
 

fa
c
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
; 
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
g
re
a
te
r 

u
s
e
 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 
to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

b
in
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
. 
  
 

 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 

th
e
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
V
e
o
lia
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 s
o
 f
a
r 
w
it
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

a
n
d
 w
it
h
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 t
o
 

a
g
re
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
. 
  
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 

it
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

w
h
e
re
 V
e
o
lia
/C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 f
o
r 
m
u
lt
ip
le
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 
  

 T
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 V
e
o
lia
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
 

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
. 
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
u
ld
 

s
ti
ll 
w
is
h
 t
o
 b
e
 a
s
s
u
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 w
ill
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 
 

 

w
ill
 a
ls
o
 m

a
k
e
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
r 

re
v
is
io
n
s
/o
rd
e
rs
. 
 

4
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
p
h
a
s
e
 
3
 
ro
ll-

o
u
t,
 
th
a
t 

a
 
w
a
rd
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
u
p
d
a
te
 
is
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
to
 
(1
) 
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 
a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
(2
) 

lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
: 

•
 
B
a
s
ic
 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
(e
.g
. 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 d
a
y
);
 

•
 
V
e
o
lia
 h
e
lp
 d
e
s
k
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

k
e
y
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
; 

•
 
L
o
c
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
(e
.g
. 

m
is
s
e
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
, 
o
p
e
n
 

lid
s
).
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 V
e
o
lia
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 l
e
tt
e
r 
to
 a
ll 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 l
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

w
e
re
 c
o
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
n
e
w
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 a
re
a
, 
a
ll 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
e
re
 d
o
o
r-
k
n
o
c
k
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

V
e
o
lia
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 u
s
e
d
 p
ic
to
ri
a
l 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
d
a
te
. 

Page 27



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

 
im
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

th
e
 d
o
o
rs
te
p
. 
 A
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

th
e
 V
e
o
lia
 c
a
ll 
c
e
n
tr
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r.
  
 

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 3
 o
n
 

2
2
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

w
e
e
k
ly
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 
T
h
is
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
: 

•
 
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

•
 
M
is
s
e
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
/o
r 
V
e
o
lia
 h
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 A
re
a
 

F
o
ru
m
s
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

a
n
d
 h
e
ld
 r
o
a
d
s
h
o
w
s
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
a
c
h
 p
h
a
s
e
 t
o
 

o
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
/i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 a
ri
s
e
. 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 a
t 

th
e
s
e
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 o
r 
le
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
r 

V
e
o
lia
 k
n
o
w
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 

 

5
. 
T
h
a
t 

q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 
a
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 
is
 
a
 

ro
b
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
: 

•
 
M
is
s
e
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
; 

•
 
F
o
o
d
 w
a
s
te
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
; 

•
 
B
in
s
 
n
o
t 
re
tu
rn
e
d
 
to
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 
(o
r 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 (
C
O
T
s
) 
w
h
ic
h
 

a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 m
is
s
e
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
ill
a
g
e
s
 

A
s
 s
ta
te
d
, 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
ls
o
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 

(C
O
T
s
) 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
n
 a
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 m
is
s
e
d
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
ill
a
g
e
s
 p
o
s
t 

Page 28



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

le
ft
 o
n
 s
tr
e
e
t)
; 

•
 
D
e
tr
it
u
s
 l
e
ft
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
ft
e
r 
w
a
s
te
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
; 

•
 
B
ro
k
e
n
 o
r 
m
is
s
in
g
 b
in
 l
id
s
. 

 

p
o
s
t 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 h
e
a
v
ily
 o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 n
e
w
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 

g
o
o
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

is
s
e
d
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
in
s
 n
o
t 
p
u
t 
b
a
c
k
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
. 
 

 V
e
o
lia
 h
a
v
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
re
w
s
 f
o
r 
a
 “
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
a
l”
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 

d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 m

is
s
e
d
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 

th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
c
re
w
s
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 r
o
u
n
d
s
 s
in
c
e
 

2
2
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
to
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 r
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
m
a
in
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

d
ry
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
ic
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
. 

 A
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 l
is
te
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 V
e
o
lia
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
. 
 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
ll 
th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 a
 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 

fe
a
tu
re
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 r
e
p
e
a
te
d
 p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
  

 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 g
o
o
d
. 
T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

is
s
e
d
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
in
s
 n
o
t 
p
u
t 
b
a
c
k
 

p
ro
p
e
rl
y
. 
 

6
. 
W
h
e
re
 
a
 
p
ro
b
le
m
 
a
re
a
 
o
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t,
 

th
a
t 
a
 
le
a
d
 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
(V
e
o
lia
 
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il)
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
: 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 
a
re
 

A
g
re
e
d
 

  E
v
e
ry
 e
ff
o
rt
 i
s
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a
re
 t
im
e
ly
, 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
n
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
o
le
ly
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
h
a
s
e
 3
 a
re
a
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

Page 29



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

ti
m
e
ly
, 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

a
n
d
 

s
e
e
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
; 

•
 
L
e
a
d
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 
lia
is
o
n
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

lo
c
a
l 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
to
 

h
e
lp
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
a
 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
fo
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 V
e
o
lia
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
w
a
rd
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 

g
ro
u
p
s
 o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
A
n
y
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 V
e
o
lia
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
e
a
m
s
. 
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
, 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
o
le
ly
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 

p
h
a
s
e
 3
. 
 

T
e
a
m
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
A
n
y
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

V
e
o
lia
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

T
e
a
m
s
. 
 

 

7
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
n
e
w
 
w
a
s
te
 
a
n
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
m
o
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
(n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

te
a
m
, 

v
ill
a
g
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 
c
re
w
, 

s
tr
e
e
t 

c
le
a
n
s
e
rs
, 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 

a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
) 
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 

b
ri
n
g
 s
ta
ff
 u
p
 t
o
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 m

in
im
u
m
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
: 

•
 
C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
b
o
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 V
e
o
lia
 s
ta
ff
; 

•
 
K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
o
f 

w
h
a
t,
 
w
h
e
re
 
a
n
d
 

w
h
e
n
 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
re
c
y
c
le
d
   
  

  
P
a
rt
ia
lly
 A
g
re
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
is
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
. 
If
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 

to
 a
n
s
w
e
r 
a
 q
u
e
ry
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 V
e
o
lia
 

C
a
ll 
C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
  
 

 S
ta
ff
 a
re
 b
ri
e
fe
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il/
V
e
o
lia
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

th
e
 w
e
e
k
ly
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
u
lk
y
 w
a
s
te
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 h
a
v
e
 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
d
a
te

 

Page 30



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

lo
c
a
lly
; 

•
 
W
h
e
n
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 d
a
y
s
 a
re
; 

•
 
D
if
fe
re
n
t 

ty
p
e
s
 

o
f 

re
c
e
p
ta
c
le
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
; 

•
 
A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
it
h
in
  
th
e
 

lo
c
a
lit
y
; 

•
 
H
o
w
 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 
th
a
t 
a
ri
s
e
 
a
re
 
d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 a
n
d
 b
y
 w
h
o
m
. 

 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
a
ll 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 T
h
e
y
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 a
d
v
is
e
 h
o
w
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 l
o
o
k
 u
p
 

th
e
ir
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 d
a
y
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
n
s
w
e
r 
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
  

 T
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

b
ri
e
fe
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
ir
 m

o
n
th
ly
 t
ra
in
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
. 

T
h
is
 c
o
v
e
rs
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
ts
 l
is
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
rm

o
re
, 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
in
g
le
 F
ro
n
tl
in
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 T
e
a
m
. 
 

 W
it
h
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 V
e
o
lia
, 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 v
is
it
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 v
ill
a
g
e
 t
o
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
it
e
m
 i
n
 m
o
n
th
ly
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 V
e
o
lia
 h
a
v
e
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 A
re
a
 F
o
ru
m
s
 t
o
 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 W

e
e
k
ly
 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 

Page 31



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
  

 B
o
th
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 V
e
o
lia
 h
a
v
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

e
it
h
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 (
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 m
y
 b
in
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 m

is
s
e
d
) 
o
r 
m
o
re
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 l
o
g
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 V
e
o
lia
 C
a
ll 
C
e
n
tr
e
 o
r 
th
e
 S
in
g
le
 

F
ro
n
tl
in
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 U
n
it
. 
 A
ll 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 g
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 T
e
a
m
. 
  
  
  
 

8
. 
T
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 
is
 
g
re
a
te
r 

lia
is
o
n
 
w
it
h
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
, 

le
tt
in
g
 
a
g
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 
a
g
e
n
ts
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
d
h
e
ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 
w
a
s
te
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te
m
 
a
re
 
h
e
ld
 
to
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 
 
T
h
is
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
h
if
t 

in
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 h
o
ld
in
g
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
o
s
e
 
la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 
w
h
o
s
e
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 
a
re
 

k
e
p
t 
b
e
lo
w
 m

in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 a
 g
re
a
t 
d
e
a
l 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 

to
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
, 
le
tt
in
g
 

a
g
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
. 
 A
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 H
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 

M
u
lt
ip
le
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 

is
s
u
e
 i
n
 b
o
th
 P
h
a
s
e
s
 2
 a
n
d
 3
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 

 A
 l
e
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
tt
in
g
 

a
g
e
n
ts
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 

F
o
ru
m
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
s
w
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
n
 a
rt
ic
le
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
  

 H
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 M
u
lt
ip
le
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 w
e
re
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
f 
s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 h
a
s
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
a
s
te
 i
s
 l
o
w
- 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 0
.5
%
 

o
f 
a
ll 
w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 V
e
o
lia
’s
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

T
e
a
m
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 W
h
e
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
 H
M
O
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 w
ri
te
 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 t
o
 o
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
ir
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
. 
P
o
s
te
rs
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 

Page 32



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 

d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
lic
e
n
s
e
d
 H
M
O
s
 w
e
re
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 w
e
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 

p
h
a
s
e
 3
 w
e
re
 d
o
o
r 
k
n
o
c
k
e
d
. 
 

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 i
n
 p
u
tt
in
g
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
g
iv
e
 
to
 

n
e
w
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
te
rs
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 

u
p
 i
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
a
llw

a
y
s
 i
n
s
id
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

to
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 
a
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
fr
o
m
 
s
o
m
e
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
o
s
te
rs
. 
  
  
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 

to
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 f
a
il 
to
 

c
o
n
ta
in
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 
T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 

–
 a
ls
o
 s
e
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 b
e
lo
w
 t
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9
. 
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

 

w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
W
h
e
re
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 l
a
n
d
 s
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 H
a
rr
in
g
a
y
 

D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
. 

 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 F
o
ru
m
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 

W
a
s
te
 C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

  T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
a
ll 
fa
it
h
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 s
h
o
rt
ly
. 
 

Page 33



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

9
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 
is
 
g
re
a
te
r 
lia
is
o
n
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

S
in
g
le
 
F
ro
n
t 

L
in
e
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 
(p
ri
v
a
te
 

s
e
c
to
r)
 
in
 
w
h
ic
h
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 
w
it
h
 
w
a
s
te
 

a
n
d
 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 
a
re
 
c
ro
s
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

w
id
e
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

d
a
ta
 
w
it
h
 
a
 
v
ie
w
 
to
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
w
o
rs
t 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

(u
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
c
t)
. 

 

A
g
re
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
is
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 
a
n
d
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

•
 
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
o
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 
w
it
h
, 
a
re
 

re
p
e
a
te
d
ly
 
fa
ili
n
g
 
to
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
 

•
 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
 d
a
ta
 

 T
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

w
ill
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
th
o
s
e
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 
w
h
e
re
 

th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 

s
e
e
k
 
c
o
rr
e
c
ti
v
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
la
n
d
lo
rd
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 
a
re
 
th
e
 
H
M
O
s
 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
v
e
rs
 

th
e
 L
a
d
d
e
r 
ro
a
d
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

lic
e
n
s
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
. 
  

 If
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 
lic
e
n
s
in
g
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 
is
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
fu
tu
re
, 
th
is
 

w
o
u
ld
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 
g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 f
ro
m
 

H
M
O
s
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
  

 T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
a
s
k
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 R

o
g
u
e
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 b
o
th
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 f
o
ru
m
 

fo
r 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 t
a
c
k
le
 t
h
e
 w
o
rs
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 
  

 

L
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 

 W
h
e
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

fa
ili
n
g
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
 

d
e
ta
ils
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
. 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 

H
M
O
’s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

1
0
. 
T
h
a
t 
a
ll 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
a
re
 
in
 
A
g
re
e
d
 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
d
a
te
. 
 

Page 34



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

p
la
in
 
a
n
d
 
s
im
p
le
 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

b
y
 

p
ic
to
ri
a
l 

ill
u
s
tr
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 A
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 l
it
e
ra
tu
re
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
s
 

p
ic
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 
s
y
m
b
o
l-
b
a
s
e
d
 
to
 
m
a
k
e
 
it
 
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
a
b
le
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
, 

n
o
 m

a
tt
e
r 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 

lit
e
ra
tu
re
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
ra
n
s
la
te
d
 u
p
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
  

 
 U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 C
a
s
e
 S
tu
d
ie
s
- 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

S
it
e
 

Is
s
u
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
  

U
p
d
a
te
-M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

E
ld
o
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
N
2
2
 

Is
s
u
e
 

•
 
P
ro
b
le
m
 o
f 
o
v
e
rf
lo
w
in
g
 r
e
fu
s
e
 b
in
s
 

•
 
T
o
o
 m
a
n
y
 b
in
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

•
 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 

v
is
it
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

•
 
P
o
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

•
 
3
6
0
 l
it
re
 r
e
fu
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
in
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 

•
 
L
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
w
a
lk
a
b
o
u
t,
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
te
 i
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 
N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
. 
 

V
e
o
lia
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 T
e
a
m
 l
e
d
 ‘
S
tr
e
e
t 
a
 W

e
e
k
’ 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 f
o
r 
re
u
s
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
la
b
le
 g
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 g
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
 d
e
e
p
 c
le
a
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

lit
te
r 
p
ic
k
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
id
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
ic
a
l 

H
a
k
o
 a
n
d
 S
c
a
ra
b
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
 v
is
it
e
d
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 

to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

Page 35



L
y
n
d
h
u
rs
t 
R
o
a
d
, 

N
2
2
 

Is
s
u
e
 

•
 
F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 i
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
in
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
e
e
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

•
 
L
o
c
a
ls
 N
A
T
s
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
-s
u
rv
e
y
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 a
 s
it
e
 v
is
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

1
0
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 
W
h
e
re
 i
t 
w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
to
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 b
in
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

a
d
v
is
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
h
a
t 
b
in
s
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s
to
re
d
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 

p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 

a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

b
in
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
to
re
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 
 

T
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 s
it
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 

a
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 a
n
d
 b
in
s
 s
to
re
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 V
e
o
lia
’s
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

T
e
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 v
is
it
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 i
n
 L
y
n
d
h
u
rs
t 

R
o
a
d
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
ti
p
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 
 

C
is
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
, 
N
1
5
 
Is
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

•
 
L
im
it
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 

•
 
O
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
m
a
lle
r 
b
in
s
 o
r 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
a
c
k
s
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
s
id
e
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 l
id
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 

C
is
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 w
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t.
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
e
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 

to
o
k
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
. 
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
a
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 s
m
a
lle
r 
b
in
s
. 

M
il
to
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 

M
il
to
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
N
6
 

 
T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 s
it
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 a
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 a
n
d
 b
in
s
 

re
tu
rn
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

Page 36



c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

M
ilt
o
n
 A
v
e
n
u
e
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ill
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

M
ilt
o
n
s
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

   

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Briefing for: 
 

Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel  
21st March 2013 
 

 

Title: 
 

Report back from panel visit to 6 estates to view 
waste and recycling facilities. 
 

 

Lead Officer: Martin Bradford, Policy Officer, 0208 489 6950 
 

 

Date: March 12th 2013 
 

 
1.  Introduction 
1.1 As part of its assessment of local waste and recycling services, the Environment and 

Housing Scrutiny Panel is assessing how recycling can be improved from flatted 
developments / estates.  This work has included: 

• A site visit to local estates to view waste and recycling facilities. 

• An evidence gathering session with specialist waste and recycling agencies, 
other local authorities and local Registered Housing Providers. 
 

1.2 The purpose of the panel visit to local flatted developments/ housing estates was to: 
§ Obtain an illustrative view of the challenges / opportunities of recycling from 

estate properties; 
§ Provide an opportunity to speak with local estate managers about local recycling 

issues and view recycling facilities. 
 

1.3 The panel aimed to view a sample of estates managed by Homes for Haringey as 
well as other Registered Housing Providers.  The table below provides list of those 
estates visited. 

 

Estate Housing Service Manager 

Sky City, N22 (Noel Park) Metropolitan Housing 

Wall Court, Stroud Green Road, N8 (Stroud Green) Homes for Haringey   

Chettle Court, Ridge Road, N4 (Stroud Green) Homes for Haringey  

Stellar House, Altair Close, N17 (Northumberland Park) Homes for Haringey 

Hale Village, N15 (Tottenham Green) Newlon Housing 

Ferry Lane, N15 (Tottenham Green) Homes for Haringey  

 
1.4 The briefing provides notes and panel discussions resulting from the visit to the 6 

local estates to view waste and recycling facilities undertaken on 25th February 2013.   

Page 39



2 | P a g e  

 

 
2. Sky City (N22), Metropolitan Housing 
2.1  This is a development above Shopping City Wood Green, which comprised of 200 

properties managed by the Metropolitan Housing Trust. There is no kerbside access 
to any property and all waste must be taken down 2 floors to the rear entrance of 
Shopping City. 

 
2.2 Within the current system of waste and recycling collection on the estate, residents 

take recycling to paladin bins which are distributed across the estate.   Paladin bins 
are then taken in the lift to the ground floor for collection.  Residents are required to 
bag up residual waste (including food waste) which is placed in one of two sheds on 
site.  The estate caretaker then collects all residual waste, places it in a compactor 
before being deposited in a skip on the ground floor (via chute). There was a open 
storage area for bulky items of waste. 

 
2.3 A number of problems were evident from discussions with the estate manager and 

caretaker as well as from observations of the panel: 

• There were problems with mice and cockroaches in the sheds where residual 
waste was collected; 

• There were problems with missed collections which caused a backlog and build 
up of waste; 

• There were often problems with the lift/ compactor which caused a backlog and 
build up of waste; 

• Rubbish cart cannot always access the rear of the building to retrieve waste due 
to blockages from other delivery vehicles. 
 

2.4 The caretaker noted that under the previous waste contract there was two way 
contact (with the driver) ahead of collection, so that any necessary preparations 
could be made.   Under the new contract, there appeared to be little consistency in 
crews and drivers collecting from site which affected local communication (i.e. when 
is best to collect/ when rear access is blocked etc).  This has resulted in more 
instances of missed collections. 

 
2.5 The panel noted that it may be better if the waste and recycling collection system 

was swapped at the estate, where residual waste is taken to paladin bins and dry 
recycling is deposited in the sheds.  This would help to reduce vermin problems in 
the sheds and make the caretaking job (of transferring waste) more pleasant. 

 
2.6  It was also suggested that further engagement with local residents by the contactor 

and or SFL could be beneficial in agreeing a new waste and collection scheme.  It 
was also noted that there was an identical estate on the opposite side of Sky City 
(managed by a different housing provider) which could benefit from localised 
consultation for scheme development. 

 
 
 
3. Wall Court, Stroud Green Road, N8 (Stroud Green) 
3.1 This is a development consisting of 4 blocks, each containing between 

approximately 25 and 50 housing units (about 200-250 units).  There is a bring 
scheme for recycling in operation on site, where residents are expected to leave 

Page 40



3 | P a g e  

 

recycling in communal paladin bins which are located at the front of each building.  
Residents can deposit residual waste in a chute (from their balcony) which is 
deposited in a communal paladin bin below (there are approximately 8 such chutes 
per block).  Residual waste is collected weekly.  There was also a shed on site for 
the storage of bulky waste items. 

 
3.2 Estate managers/ caretaking staff did not report any significant issues with waste 

and recycling on site, though it was noted that volumes of recycling were relatively 
low (compared to residual waste). Recycling bins were located at the front of the 
building and near commercial properties and alongside a busy pedestrian footway, 
both of which precipitated occasional contamination (casual and sometimes more 
purposeful).  This intelligence is passed back to Veolia (contractor).   

 
3.3 Estate managers/ caretaking staff had a general policy of leaving recycling bins 

unlocked.  Although this has led to some contamination of the bins, it helped to 
reduce the amount of side waste from residents not being able to place large 
recycling items (or bags of recycling items) in the bin. 

 
3.4 The panel observed that recycling volumes appeared to be low in the bins that were 

inspected.  It was suggested that the estate would benefit from further engagement 
and education to make residents aware of what can be recycled.  It was not clear if 
there was a residents association here which could provide the initial focus for such 
engagement. 

 
4. Chettle Court, Ridge Road, N4 (Stroud Green) 
4.1 This is a large block comprising of approximately 80 flats (over 4 stories).  Waste 

and recycling paladin bins are stored around the back of the building and both are 
collected weekly.   There is also a bin storage for large bulky items of waste. 

 
4.2 There did not appear to be any outward problems with recycling from this estate, as 

there had never been any recycling returns (from contamination of bins).  However, 
the volume of recycling did not appear to be high.  There was an occasional problem 
with side waste with bags of recycling not being placed in the recycling paladin.     

 
4.3 Many of those bags placed in the recycling bin were black bags which made it 

difficult to determine whether correct recycling was being placed in the bins and if 
waste was contaminated. It was suggested that a site such as this could offer an 
opportunity to trial clear bags for use in a recycling bring scheme.   

 
4.4 The panel noted that there were still a number of green boxes being used on site. 
 
4.5 A local resident contacted the scrutiny service to feedback on local waste and 

recycling issues from this estate. A summary of the main issues raised by this 
resident are given below: 

 

• In the particular area where this resident lives there is only residual waste 
collection.  To recycle, the resident has to go to another side of the estate.  This 
was felt to be a significant deterrent to recycling and underlined the need to have 
both waste and recycling collections at the same location. 
 

Page 41



4 | P a g e  

 

• The resident is still not sure about where the recycling goes once it leaves 
Haringey, and the efficacy of co mingled waste which was a deterrent to 
recycling.  This would appear to underline the need for further local engagement 
and education. 

 
5. Stellar House, Altair Close, N17 (Northumberland Park) 
5.1 This is a 16 story flatted tower block of approximately 65 properties.  There is 

currently a chute system in operation for residual waste and there is one chute 
aperture (hopper) per floor.  Recycling is a bring scheme to paladin bins which are 
located on the ground floor at the rear of the building. 

 
5.2 The aperture (hopper) is not large which means that it is difficult to put large items 

down the residual waste chute.  As a consequence, the estate manager noted that 
there were few problems with chute blockages on this particular site. 

 
5.3 It was the estate manages perception that residents of Stellar House were not bad 

recyclers (compared to other similar buildings).  It was also noted that there was not 
a problem with recycling returns from this site either, an indicator that contamination 
was not a problem.   Upon inspection, the panel noted that there was not much 
volume of recycling offered for collection in the communal paladin bins (which was 3 
days off).   

 
5.4 There were not any major problems with missed collections since the new contract 

was established with Veolia.  In checking back records, the estate manager noted 
that there had only been 3 missed collections.  However, the estate manager 
indicated that there had been lot of changeover in the Veolia crews which made local 
communication and service continuity difficult between estate managers and waste 
collection services. 

 
Agreed: The panel suggested that a system should be developed to ensure that 

waste collection crews/ estate service managers could contact each other 
ahead of collection.  It was suggested that estate Managers details could 
be placed on Veolia Round Sheets to facilitate communication/ information 
exchange. 

 
5.5 The panel discussed whether the use of some form of bags (re-usable) or sacks 

(disposable) could be introduced at sites such as Stellar Court as this may assist 
residents in storing and taking recycling to the communal collection point.  It was 
noted that such bags (if disposable) could be left with the caretaker /concierge 
service for residents to pick up. 

 
5.6 The panel discussed whether this one chute block could support a waste and 

recycling collection reversal; with the chute being converted for recycling and a bring 
scheme instituted for residual waste at a communal collection point.  There were 
concerns that this system would need substantive buy in from residents as the risk of 
contamination was high and with little likelihood of identifying offenders in such a 
large block with a chute. 

 
5.7 It was noted to the panel that there was a similar block close by (Kenneth Robbins 

House) which had two chutes (front and back), both of which were currently being 

Page 42



5 | P a g e  

 

used for residual waste.  The panel felt that this site would be a good opportunity to 
trial a chute conversion, to make one chute for recycling and retain one for residual 
waste. 

 
Agreed:  That Kenneth Robbins Court suggested to be used as a trial for chute 

conversion (one for recycling and one retained for residual waste) as a 
part of a wider scheme for assessing and concerting waste chutes.  

 
6. Hale Village, N15 (Tottenham Green) 
6.1 This is a new flatted development managed by Newlon Housing and comprises of 

550 properties in Tottenham Hale.  Properties include those in shared ownership, 
social housing and student accommodation.  The estate has been opened in a 
number of stages from 2011.  The volume of waste and recycling from the site has 
been high in the first 18 months as would be expected for a new development.  

 
6.2 Bring schemes are used for residual waste, recycling and food waste on the 

development (no bags are allowed in any of the hallways).  There are paladin bins 
for both recycling and residual waste, while there are 240l bins for food waste.  If 
residents are unable to take waste and recycling down to the communal collection 
points (e.g. infirmed) then caretaking staff may assist (this is not publicised).  Waste 
is collected weekly. 

 
6.3 Given the size of the development and the needs of local residents (e.g. a lot of new 

people moving in), Newlon have established a number of systems to help collect 
waste and recycling and to reduce the tonnage of waste that goes to landfill.  These 
measures help to reduce costs of the corporate cleaning contract that Newlon has 
and include: 

• A separate cardboard store room is in operation on site.  This is collected by a 
local business which recycles this material to make pizza boxes. 

• A dedicated storage room for bulky items which can possibly be reused or 
recycled (e.g. furniture items) before onward pick up by Restore (reclaim and 
reuse).  Approximately 40 tonnes of waste dealt with in this way. 

• There is also a lockable external metal container for the storage of electrical, 
wood and other materials for recycling. 

• Mattresses (5-6 a week) are also collected through a private arrangement of £15 
per mattress (which is then recycled). 

• Through the above measures, it was estimated that the cost of disposal of bulky 
items has been reduced from £80,000 to £45,000. 

 
6.4 Waste and recycling process is enforced: there are porters/ concierge service who 

monitor the whole site on CCTV.  There is CCTV in all communal bin areas which 
can monitor waste disposal.  In addition, entry is by key fob only, meaning that there 
is limited opportunity for external fly tipping.  Those found to be infringing the waste 
and recycling system are issues with a housing letter and notice reminding of the 
estate agreement.  Enforcement action taken in about 1 in 100 residents. 

 
6.5 Newlon also operates a fun day biannually for local residents and their families, part 

of which is to promote use of local recycling systems. 
 

Page 43



6 | P a g e  

 

6.6 There is a food waste recycling system in operation on site for which compostable 
bags are provided free of charge to local residents.  These are stored next to the 
food waste collection bins for easy pick up.  There have been a few missed 
collections of food waste over the past 12 months.  There housing provider indicated 
that this is an area it would like to develop further.   

 
7.  Ferry Lane, N15 (Tottenham Green) 
7.1 The panel were unable to visit the Ferry lane estate as planned due to time 

limitations.  It was possible however to speak to the estate service manager who 
provided a summary of some of the waste and recycling issues on this estate. 

 

• There is a problem with the larger communal bins in that the flaps (through which 
waste is deposited) are often too small to accommodate the bags of mixed 
recycling that people bring down to the bins.  As a result, this often gets left beside 
the bin as side waste and is therefore susceptible to contamination and doesn’t 
look nice for the area. 
 

• As a trial in Reedham Close, Kessock Close, padlocks have been left of the bins 
and this seems to have improved issues with side waste being left as people can 
now put all the rubbish in the bin via the bags they bring down. 
 

• There is a problem with off estate residents dumping and fly tipping on Ferrry Lane 
estate. 
 

• Erskine Crescent: there are smaller recycling bins for this street which is currently 
only collected fortnightly.  As a result, there is a problem with overflowing bins and 
sidewaste (and contamination).  
 

• There is an ongoing problem with the responsiveness of Veolia in respect of large 
item or bulk collections – these are not collected frequently and the ESM has to 
constantly keep chasing up for clearance.  

 
 
 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

Haringey Statement of 
Community Involvement

(Adopted May 2007) 

(updated February 2011) 

www.haringey.gov.uk

1

Agenda Item 10Page 145



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

Contents

1. What is the Statement of Community Involvement? ........................................... 3

2. Haringey’s Vision for Community Involvement ................................................... 4

3. How to get involved in the Local Development Framework ............................. 10

4. Community Involvement in Planning Applications............................................... 16

5. Reviewing the Statement of Community Involvement ...................................... 26

Appendix 1: Principles of Community Involvement .............................................. 27

Appendix 2: Community Involvement Methods ..................................................... 29

Appendix 3: Potential Methods for Community Involvement ............................... 31

Appendix 4: Haringey COMPACT – Public Sector Commitments ........................ 35

Appendix 5: Development Plan Making Stages ..................................................... 36

Appendix 6: Supplementary Planning Document Stages ..................................... 38

Appendix 7: Planning Application Notification, Publicity and Consultation....... 39

Appendix 8: Consultation policy – neighbour notification ................................... 41

Appendix 9: Weekly planning list and statutory publicity .................................... 43

Appendix 10: Consultation policy - internal departments .................................... 44 

2

Page 146



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

1. What is the Statement of Community Involvement?  

1.1   The Council is committed to involving and consulting with local people in all 
planning processes and decisions. Local views on development and change in 
the borough will help to shape the future of the borough. 

1.2   The Council produce a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) because 
we are committed to listening to local people and taking their views into 
account. When it comes to all the physical changes taking place we would like 
to hear what you have to say, so that we can use residents’ and other 
stakeholders’ views to shape the way local areas change.

1.3   The SCI sets out the Council’s approach to engaging with and consulting the 
community in planning and development issues which affect where they live, 
work and visit. It sets out how and when the Council will consult with local 
communities in relation to planning applications and strategic plans in the 
emerging Local Development Framework (LDF).

1.4 The LDF is the spatial plan for Haringey which is made up of the SCI and other 
Local Development Documents (LDDs). The community and stakeholders are 
involved in the progress of the LDDs at each significant stage and the SCI will 
make it easier for people to continue their involvement in improving and 
strengthening the LDF overall. 

1.5   The Council adopted its first SCI in May 2007. This is the first review of the 
document and is in response to changes in planning law and changes in the 
consultation process. We are committed to monitoring and updating the SCI to 
reflect local, regional and national changes.

1.6   There are different methods of consulting on development plans and planning 
applications. These are clearly set out in Sections 3 and 4 below. 

3

Page 147



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

2. Haringey’s Vision for Community Involvement 

2.1 The vision for Haringey is ‘A place for diverse communities that people are 
proud to belong to’. To achieve this vision the priority outcomes are:

 people at the heart of change 

 environmentally sustainable future 

 economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

 safer for all 

 healthier people with a better quality of life 

 people and customer focused 

2.2   This vision is set out in the borough’s Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) 
(2007-2016). The Strategy was approved by the Council and by the Haringey 
Strategic Partnership in March 2007 and was reviewed in 2010. The Council’s 
Local Development Framework (LDF) will give a spatial interpretation to the 
Sustainable Community Strategy.   

2.3 In delivering the vision for Haringey the involvement and participation of the 
local community and other stakeholders in the preparation of the LDF and 
processing of planning applications is essential.

2.4 As set out in Haringey’s Consultation Strategy, the Council recognises the 
fundamental importance of undertaking effective community involvement and 
consultation to ensure that decisions are based on ‘sound’ reasoning, and 
these are transparent and accountable to the community. The Council defines 
consultation as ‘a process of dialogue which leads to a decision’, so it is the 
commitment of the Council to ensure that consultation: 

 reaches more people; 

 demonstrates to the community that their views are heard; 

 avoids consultation fatigue; and 

 avoids duplication of consultation issues. 

2.5 ‘Haringey Council is committed to improving communication channels between 
the Council and the local community’ (Haringey Council Consultation Strategy: 
Guiding Principles). The eight guiding principles in the Consultation Strategy 
set out how the Council will make it worthwhile for local people to get involved 
in consultation. We will: 

 do careful forward planning before starting a consultation exercise;

 be clear about the purpose of the consultation – what we are consulting 
about, who we are consulting, about what and what effect the findings 
will have on shaping policies and proposals; 

 actively engage the whole community by using a variety of formats and 
media and be mindful of local avenues for accessing people, particularly 
within the voluntary sector; 

 give enough time for people to be consulted; 

 choose the right method for the type of stakeholders being consulted; 

4

Page 148



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

 provide feedback; 

 monitor consultations; and 

 co-ordinate consultation within the corporate framework. 

2.6 The Planning Service will, when necessary, ensure officers are appropriately 
trained in these principles and attend courses focused on the delivery of 
effective community involvement and consultation. We will also work with the 
Communications Team from the outset to deliver a co-ordinated approach to 
how information is delivered to local people. 

2.7  The Council will also take forward the principles and commitments of the 
Haringey COMPACT, which is an agreement between voluntary, community 
and statutory organisations on how they intend to engage and work together in 
partnership to make a positive difference to the services offered in Haringey. 
See Appendix 4 for details of the public sector’s commitments in the 
COMPACT. 

2.8   The community involvement and consultation activities undertaken in planning 
will reflect the Council’s equal opportunities commitments and priorities, as set 
out in the Council’s Equal Opportunities Policy 2008.

2.9 The SCI reflects the community involvement and consultation priorities identified 
in the aforementioned documents. In addition, we will work with structures that 
have developed in Haringey over recent years such as Neighbourhood 
Management, Conservation Area Advisory Committees, Development 
Management Fora, Tenants Forums, Residents Associations and local 
projects. These initiatives have allowed more local people to get involved in 
planning and other Council services. 

2.10 It is a legal requirement that all Council set how they will involve local 
communities in planning decisions and plan making process. Additionally, 
consultation approaches must be tailored to the make up of the local 
population, the needs and interests of the various community groups in the 
area in an effort to encourage people to participate in the planning process. 
Community involvement should take place from the initial stages of the 
planning process. 

How the SCI fits in with the LDF?

2.11 The Statement of Community Involvement forms part of Haringey’s LDF. The 
LDF is a folder of documents LDDs which include: 

 Development Plan Documents (DPDs) which set out the development 
objectives and detailed plans for the borough in the plan period 

 Supplementary Plan Documents (SPDs) will provide more detailed 
information set out in the DPDs

 Statement of Community Involvement, this sets out how the Council will 
involve the community in the planning process and planning decisions. 

5

Page 149



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

 Annual Monitoring Report, this monitors and reviews the performance 
and outcomes of policies in the LDF 

 Local Development Scheme (LDS) sets out the schedule for preparing 
and revising the LDDs. 

2.12 All LDF documents can be accessed at 
www.haringey.gov.uk/local_development_framework or by contacting the 
LDF team at ldf@haringey.gov.uk or 020 84891479

2.13 The SCI aims to clearly set out how the Council intends to involve the local 
community and stakeholders in the planning process. The SCI details the 
process for involvement, including those who will be involved, when and how 
engagement will happen and what outcomes to be expected. 

2.14 The LDS 2010 was approved in November 2010 and covers the period 2010 – 
2013. The LDS sets out the timetables for the preparation, consultation and 
expected adoption of the following documents:

 Core Strategy 

 Development Management Policies 

 Site Allocations 

 North London Waste Plan 

 Tottenham Hale Area Action Plan 

 Tottenham High Road Area Action Plan 

 Northumberland Park Area Action Plan 

 Heartlands and Wood Green Area Action Plan 

 Seven Sisters Area Action Plan 

 Community Infrastructure Levy DPD 

About Haringey’s Community 

2.15 Haringey has a population of 225,300 (2008), which represents 2.9% of 
London’s total population. Haringey’s population has grown by 8.8% since 
1991 and is projected to grow by a further 12.3% by 2033. 

2.16 Haringey has a relatively transient population. At the time of the 2001 Census, 
there were 36,000 migrants in the borough, the 9th highest proportion in 
London.

2.17 The borough’s age structure is similar to that of London as a whole, although 
the east of the borough tends to have more young people and the west more 
older people. In 2010, Haringey’s school population was approximately 33,000 
children.

2.18 The impact of population and housing growth on Haringey will have a 
significant impact on social infrastructure, such as health and education 
facilities and water and energy infrastructure. For example, Haringey will 
experience particularly high growth in school numbers up to 2021. In many 

6

Page 150



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

parts of the borough the percentage of surplus school reception places is 
already less than 5%. 

2.19 The borough contains large and diverse black and ethnic minority communities. 
48.9% of the population are from black and minority ethnic groups, the 6th 
highest proportion in London, and almost half of all pupils in Haringey schools 
speak English as an additional language.  The borough is also rated as the 4th

most ethnically diverse local authority area in England and Wales. 

Figure 2.1 Projected Population 2010-2026 

2.20 There is great diversity in Haringey and our community involvement activities 
will reflect this diversity and we will aim to provide equal access to all. We will 
pay special attention to groups of the community who traditionally may not 
have been involved in the planning system or who may find it difficult to 
engage with the planning system. These ‘hard to reach’ groups can be any 
group within the community that is difficult to access for reasons of 
inaccessibility, language barriers, cultural perceptions, traditions or social 
expectations.  We will pay specific attention to: 

Language barriers – the diversity of language in the borough means that we 
will produce documents which are clear, concise, and are available in different 
languages, Braille, audio-format and large print. More interactive community 
involvement activities will also be used such as visual displays and exhibitions.

7

Page 151



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

Children and young people – we will involve young people in decision-
making on planning issues. This will require using more innovative and creative 
techniques as young people have not always been adequately involved in the 
past.

Low internet access – access to the internet is not available to everyone. The 
methods selected for community involvement will be a combination of online 
(e-planning) and offline facilities. 

Older People – the Council will aim to involve older people and groups such 
as the Muswell Hill and Highgate Pensioners Group, and the Haringey Forum 
for Older People more effectively in decision making by creating stronger links 
with such groups in the borough. We will also use accessible venues and 
facilities and have documents available in accessible formats. 

Disabled people - the Council will aim to involve people with disability and 
mobility issues more effectively in decision making by creating stronger links 
with disability and mobility groups in the borough. We will also use accessible 
venues and facilities, and make documents available in accessible formats. 

2.21 Appendix 1 sets out in more detail the principles which will ensure that the 
communities in Haringey are effectively involved.

2.22 The Council recognises it can not persuade everyone to get involved, or be 
able to take on board every comment received. We also recognise that some 
individuals, groups and businesses may have a greater capacity to get 
involved in planning matters than others and so where appropriate we will 
support those who find it difficult to get involved with planning issues. We have 
sought to be realistic about the community involvement activities proposed; 
recognising that there are limits to our resources and time constraints. The 
Council are committed to getting less actively engaged groups and individuals 
involved, and to supporting those who are already involved to support those 
who are not yet engaged or fully engaged. Appendix 2 identifies methods that 
will be used for the preparation and revision of LDDs and recommended to 
applicants of major or sensitive applications. Further information about these 
methods, including details of their benefits, limitations and resource 
implications are set out in Appendix 3.

Who will we consult?  

2.23 Haringey will seek the views of those who live, work and spend their leisure 
time in the borough. As well as those organisations whose activities affect life 
in the borough such adjoining land owners, the Police, Health Services and the 
Mayor of London. A list of the key stakeholders that the Council must involve 
and consult is detailed in Section 3. We have also produced a database of 
individuals and organisations who wish to be involved, including local 
businesses, residents associations, voluntary groups, government bodies and 
individuals. 

8

Page 152



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

2.24 Please advise the Planning Policy Team if you wish to add, remove or amend 
contact details on the LDF consultation database.             
ldf@haringey.gov.uk or call 02084891479 or write to; 

LDF Team 
London Borough of Haringey 
639 High Road, Tottenham
N17 8BD 

How and when to get involved in the Planning system? 

2.25 The local community, businesses, voluntary and community organisations and 
others can influence and shape planning outcomes in the borough through 
involvement in the preparation and reviewing of the LDF; and through 
consultation on planning applications.

2.26 The principles and methods set out in Appendices 2 and 3 will help ensure that 
documents in the LDF and future planning applications produce high quality, 
locally designed and well supported plans, policies and proposals. This will 
help to increase: 

 transparency in planning decision making processes; and 

 community and other stakeholder participation in planning.

2.27 We will encourage applicants of major or sensitive applications to undertake 
early community involvement before the application is formally submitted. We 
will expect developers to employ a mixture of consultation tools listed in 
Appendix 2 to achieve meaningful engagement with the communities likely to 
be affected by their proposals.  The choice of appropriate mechanisms will, 
however, be at the discretion of the developer.  The applicants will be 
encouraged to submit a Consultation Statement with larger applications to 
identify the consultation undertaken and its results, together with how this has 
been incorporated into the submitted planning application.  We will also 
recommend all applicants, regardless of the scale or size of their applications, 
to consider talking to neighbours, amenity groups, Conservation Advisory 
Groups Conservation Advisory Committees and other appropriate groups, to 
maximise the benefit of local knowledge and, through early discussions, 
increase the likelihood that the application will be unopposed. 

2.28 Details of how to get involved in each of these processes are set out in 
Sections 3 and 4. 

9

Page 153



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

3. How to get involved in the Local Development Framework 

3.1 The Local Development Framework is a folder of planning policy documents, 
known as Local Development Documents (LDDs). These include: 

 Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 

 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) 

 Other documents including Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
and Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 

3.2 Haringey aims to produce development plans which reflect the needs and 
aspirations of those who live, work and visit the borough. To achieve this it is 
necessary to engage with all relevant groups and individuals in an effective 
way and at the earliest and most appropriate times. This type of engagement 
will help to ensure the best outcomes and to avoid delays in approving and 
delivering the framework.  

10

Page 154



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

3.3 Those who are consulted can be categorised into the following types of 
consultees: 

Specific
consultation
bodies

Statutory bodies such as adjoining boroughs and 
government agencies. 

Government
departments

Where necessary particular government departments will 
also be consulted.

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

b
o

d
ie

s

General
consultation
bodies

National and local community and voluntary groups, 
businesses and other stakeholders, including the Lee 
Valley Regional Park Authority (LVRPA) and 
Conservation Area Advisory Committees. 

Other Consultees Other groups which will be consulted on specific issues, 
some of whom are under-represented or hard to reach.

3.4   Haringey will consult the following bodies when preparing planning documents:

Specific Consultation Bodies 

 The Mayor of London  

 Adjoining boroughs 

- Barnet 
- Camden 
- Enfield 
- Hackney 
- Islington 
- Waltham Forest 

 Natural England; 

 The Environment Agency; 

 English Heritage; 

 The Highways Agency; 

 Network Rail; 

 The London Development Agency; 

 Telecommunications operators; 

 NHS London; 

 Gas and electricity operators; 

 Thames Water 

General Consultation Bodies 

 Voluntary bodies some or all of whose activities benefit any part of 
the Borough 

 Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic, or 
national groups in the Borough. 

 Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups 
in the Borough 

11

Page 155



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

 Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the 
Borough.

 Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on 
business in the Borough. 

Government Departments - if necessary  

 Home Office 

 Department for Education 

 Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 

 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

 Department for Transport  

 Department of Health (through relevant Regional Public Health 
Group)

 Ministry of Defence 

 Department of Works and Pensions 

 Department for Constitutional Affairs 

 Department for Culture, Media and Sport 

 Office of Government Commerce (Property Advisers to the Civil 
Estate)

Additionally, the Council will consult with the following bodies, where 
appropriate:

 Age UK 

 British Geological Survey 

 British Waterways, canal owners and navigation authorities 

 Centre for Ecology and Hydrology 

 Chamber of Commerce, Local CBI and local branches of Institute 
of Directors 

 Church Commissioners 

 Civil Aviation Authority 

 Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment 

 Commission for Racial Equality 

 Crown Estate Office 

 Diocese Board of Finance 

 Disabled Persons Transport Advisory Committee 

 Environmental groups at national, regional and local level, 
including: 

- Council for the Protection of Rural England 
- Friends of the Earth  
- Royal Society for the Protection of Birds 
- London Wildlife Trust 

 Local historic, environmental and amenity groups and societies, 
including Conservation Area Advisory Committees (CAACs) 

 Equality and Human Rights Commission 

 Fields in Trust 

 Fire and Rescue Services 

 Forestry Commission 

12

Page 156



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

 Freight Transport Association 

 Gypsy Council 

 Health and Safety Executive 

 Homes and Communities Agency 

 Home Builders Federation 

 Learning and Skills Council 

 Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 

 Local Transport Operators and Transport for London 

 Metropolitan Police Authority 

 Royal Mail Property Holdings 

 Registered Providers 

 Sport England 

 Friends, Families and Travellers (FFT) 

 Women’s National Commission 

 The Theatres Trust 

3.5    Local representative bodies will be regularly consulted, when and where 
appropriate. The approach to consultation will be flexible, accessible and 
proactive, and the scale of consultation will be equal to the likely impact of the 
proposed plan. Notification material will be designed to be clear and concise, 
without any jargon. Type of engagement and consultation could include 
workshop style events, seminars, meetings, and interactive information stalls to 
encourage wide participation and engagement throughout the borough. Each 
event and meeting will be tailored to the specific focus group, discussing 
issues relevant to their interests and relevance to any proposals. 

3.6    Any member of the community who would like to be kept informed of the 
progress of the LDF, please send us your details via email to 
ldf@haringey.gov.uk or letter to  

LDF Team
London Borough of Haringey 
639 High Road, Tottenham 
N17 8BD 

Or telephone 020 8489 1479

3.7    We will keep local people informed of upcoming consultation in articles and 
advertisements in Haringey People (bi-monthly magazine delivered to every 
household in the borough), local newspapers, on our website, on Haringey’s 
consultation calendar and in emails and letters to individuals and 
organisations.

3.8   A wide selection of potential methods for community involvement during the 
preparation stages of DPD and SPD are set out in Appendices 2 and 3. 
Selecting a particular method at any given stage will depend on some of the 
following considerations: 

 the extent to which the document will contribute to the desired outcome; 

13

Page 157



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

 the topic under discussion; 

 geographic coverage of the document; 

 which particular stage of the planning process has been reached; or 

 the need for specialist local knowledge. 

3.9 The Regulations set out minimum requirements that the Council must undertake 
for consultation on documents. However, Haringey Council aims to go further 
to ensure effective and wider community involvement. The Council recognises 
that different methods for involvement may be more appropriate for different 
audiences so the most effective way to meet local need and requirements is to 
choose a range of approaches throughout the whole process. The Council also 
recognises that the planning system can be difficult to understand and this may 
prevent people from getting involved. We will provide information and produce 
documents that are concise and easy to read. We will also be clear right from 
the outset of all community involvement activities, about their scope and room 
for influence to avoid raising unrealistic expectations.  The Council are 
committed to clarifying the issues and options in the course of consultation 
wherever possible. 

Development plan document process 

3.10 The five stages of preparing a Development Plan Document (DPD) are set out 
in Appendix 5. The Council aims to involve the community and other 
stakeholders at each stage to ensure the documents are effective and reflect 
community priorities.

Supplementary planning document process 

3.11 There are three stages in the preparation of Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPD) and these are set out in Appendix 6. The Council aims to 
involve the community and other stakeholders at each stage.

Feedback

3.12 The Council will provide feedback on formal consultation exercises for LDF 
documents. At the end of the statutory consultation period letters/emails of 
acknowledgement will be sent to respondents. This will include a summary of 
how the information will be used and the next steps in the process. These 
summary reports will be made available in Haringey and on our website 
www.haringey.gov.uk.

3.13 The Council recognises that it is not possible for everyone to support policies 
and emerging proposals in the LDF. Neither is it possible for the Council to 
accept all views. Some issues cannot be influenced as they may be national or 
regional policies that the Council’s LDF must incorporate and keep to. 
Comments received from local people and other stakeholders will be used to 
inform a document alongside government and regional guidance and policies 
and our evidence base derived from our scoping activities. 

Effectiveness and monitoring

14

Page 158



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

3.14 After a LDD has been completed, the Council will, where appropriate, evaluate 
individual consultation methods. We will use feedback forms to assist us in 
assessing our approach and this may include asking people to rate the 
consultation methods and suggest ways for improving their use. Below is a 
checklist against which methods will be assessed: 

 Did it provide information needed from the Council? 

 Did it provide sufficient opportunity for people to get involved? 

 Did it widen involvement? 

 Did it allow people to contribute their views and ideas? 

3.15  This evaluation will allow us to refine our approach to community involvement, 
making any necessary adjustments to ensure that future activities are effective. 

15

Page 159



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

4. Community Involvement in Planning Applications 

4.1 Planning applications arise when permission is sought by someone (an 
individual, groups, businesses, public authority) to use or develop land. 
Haringey Council is responsible for deciding whether planning permission 
should be granted or refused after considering the policies in the LDF, strategic 
priorities and representations from the local community. The community can 
comprise both individuals and groups, many of whom command a wide range 
of professional and technical skills and have a detailed knowledge of the local 
area.  Developers and other applicants are strongly encouraged to tap into this 
resource at the earliest possible stage of the (proposed) development process.

4.2 The standard applications the Council considers are as follows and this must 
be undertaken within a prescribed period:

Table 4.1: Types of Planning Applications 

Application
type 

Description
Target
Timescale

Major Residential developments (whether by conversion or new 
build), involving the creation of 10 or more units, or where 
the number of units is not known, those with a site area of 
0.5 hectares or more; or other (non-residential) 
developments with a floorspace of 1000m2 or more or with 
a site area of 1 hectare or more. 

13 weeks 

Minor Residential developments below 10 units and non – 
residential developments with a floorspace below 1000m2.  

8 weeks

Householder Those within the curtilage of a residential property which 
requires an application for planning permission and is not 
a change of use. These include extensions, alterations, 
garages, swimming pools, walls, fences, vehicular 
accesses, porches and satellite dishes. Excluded from 
householder developments are applications to change the 
number of dwellings within an existing building and 
applications for the erection of a separate dwelling. 

8 weeks

The application process 

4.3 The nature of the application will decide who will be consulted. Appendix 8 sets 
out the guidelines for who needs to be consulted on particular applications.

4.4 Applicants of major schemes are advised to undertake early community 
involvement before submitting an application to the Council. It is the 
responsibility of the applicant to conduct pre-application community 
involvement. With applications submitted to the Council, interested people will 
have the opportunity to know what proposals are in their area, be consulted on 
them and find out about decisions. The comments received during the 
application stage will help to inform how the application is determined, 
alongside national, regional and local planning policies. The Council 

16

Page 160



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

17

recognises that with such an inclusive approach to the planning process it will 
not always be possible to satisfy everyone and achieve consensus all of the  
time. Table 4.2 below outlines how the Council will consult with residents and 
relevant bodies for planning applications.

Page 161



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

T
a
b

le
 4

.2
: 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

P
re

-a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
 

P
a
n

e
l2

P
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 
b
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
. 

F
o
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n
 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
.

A
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

e
 t

o
 a

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

s
it
e
 p

la
n
s
 

a
n
d
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
 i
n
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 d
e
ta

il 
th

e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

F
o

r 
m

a
jo

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

te
a

m
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 S
it
e
s
, 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fr
o
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
) 

s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 i

n
p
u
t 

in
to

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

ls
o

 o
p
e
ra

te
s
 a

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 0

8
:4

5
 a

m
 a

n
d

 1
7

:0
0

 p
m

 M
o

n
d

a
y
 –

 
F

ri
d

a
y
 a

t 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
, 

w
h

e
re

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 

w
it
h
 a

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

a
re

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
 

a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t.

W
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 P

a
n
e
l:
 

re
s

id
e

n
ti

a
l:
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

1
0
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 o

f 
0
.5

 h
e
c
ta

re
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

; 

n
o

n
 –

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l:

  
1
,0

0
0
 s

q
. 

m
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

 g
ro

s
s
 f

lo
o
rs

p
a
c
e
 /

o
r 

 s
it
e
s
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

1
 h

e
c
ta

re
; 

 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 p

u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n

 s
p
a
c
e
 o

r 
lis

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
; 

a
n
d

 
o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
lly

, 
o
th

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
e
e
l 
w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
rt

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l’s

 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
’s

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

2
T

h
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 d
e

s
ig

n
 p

a
n

e
l 
is

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
u

rb
a
n

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 k

e
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

p
o
w

e
rs

; 
ra

th
e
r 

it
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 r
o
le

. 
T

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
m

e
e

ts
 t
o

 l
o

o
k
s
 a

t 
p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

n
ly

.

1
8

Page 162



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

P
re

-a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 o

n
 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

P
re

-a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 o

n
 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

L
e

tt
e

rs
, 

N
e
w

s
 

P
a
p

e
r 

A
d

v
e
rt

 
(p

u
b

li
c

n
o

ti
c

e
),

L
e

a
fl

e
ts

,
P

u
b

li
c

M
e

e
ti

n
g

s
,

E
x

h
ib

it
io

n
s

,
D

is
p

la
y
s
, 

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
, 

fo
c
u

s
G

ro
u

p
s

,
P

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

R
e

a
l,

s
e
m

in
a
rs

)

It
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 e
a
rl
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
fo

re
 

a
p
p
ly

in
g
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

, 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

F
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
, 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 

d
ir
e
c
te

d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
n
ta

c
ts

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
/C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

o
rt

a
l 
a
s
 a

 w
a
y
 o

f 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
ta

c
t.
 S

u
c
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
re

a
, 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 o
f 

k
e
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

th
a
t 

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 a

n
d
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
. 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 b
e
lo

w
: 

(a
) 

A
s
 

e
a
rl
y
 

a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 m
a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

u
it
a
b
le

, 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

C
I.

 I
t 

is
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 t
o

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 t

h
in

k
 f

it
, 

b
u

t 
m

in
d

fu
l 
o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 S

C
I.

 

(b
) 

W
h
ils

t 
a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
s
. 

(c
) 

A
ft
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
s
u
b
m

it
 
a
 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

(C
S

) 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 t

y
p
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
, 

th
e

 k
e
y
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t.
 I

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 k
n
o
w

 w
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 t

h
in

k
, 

ra
is

e
 a

n
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 

1
9

Page 163



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 r
ig

h
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

e
t.
 A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 t
o
o
 c

a
n
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 s

o
 

th
a
t 

w
h
a
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

p
la

c
e
, 

a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
. 
 H

e
n
c
e
, 

th
e
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
, 

w
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
, 

b
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 m

a
jo

r 
o
n
e
s
, 

if
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
te

n
ti
o
u
s
. 

If
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 

o
f 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 a

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
is

a
g
re

e
s
 w

it
h
 w

e
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 

re
fu

s
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
 v

a
lid

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
f 

a
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 

fa
ils

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

n
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
is

 
c
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 r

is
e
 t

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

w
h

e
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
W

h
e
n
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 (

m
a
jo

r,
 m

in
o
r 

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
) 

is
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
e
 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
te

re
d
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 R
e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 

A
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 t

o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

d
ra

w
in

g
s
, 

s
it
e
 

p
la

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 

T
ra

v
e
l/
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 /

o
r 

P
la

n
, 

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
, 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
 

A
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
y
 

p
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

a
n
d

 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 s

h
a
p
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
(v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

) 
o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
e
b

s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
h
o
w

 w
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

A
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
 &

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

S
it

e
 N

o
ti

c
e
 

A
 s

it
e
 n

o
ti
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 a
n
d
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

is
p
la

y
e
d
 i

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

fa
lls

 
w

it
h
in

 a
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 

o
r 

if
 i

t 
is

 a
 d

e
p
a
rt

u
re

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

F
o
r 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

2
0

Page 164



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 l
e

g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 d
is

p
la

y
 a

 s
it
e
 n

o
ti
c
e
 o

n
 a

ll 
p
u
b
lic

ly
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

. 
F

o
r 

a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

 s
it
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
is

p
la

y
e

d
 i

n
 p

ro
m

in
e

n
t 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 o

r 
n

e
a

r 
th

e
 s

it
e

. 
T

h
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

s
 

s
ta

y
 u

p
 f

o
r 

a
 2

1
 d

a
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

A
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
 &

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

D
ir

e
c

t
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

r 
N

o
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 
L

e
tt

e
rs

W
e
b

s
it

e

T
w

o
 b

a
s
ic

 l
e
tt
e
rs

 a
re

 s
e
n
t:
 

 
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r,
 m

in
o
r 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
; 

a
n
d
 

 
th

o
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 g
o
 t

o
 a

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
o
ru

m
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 e
x
c
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

in
im

u
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

s
e
e
 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 7
).

 F
o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 s
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 8
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 n
o
ti
fy

 b
y
 l
e
tt
e
r:

 

 
a
ll 

a
d
jo

in
in

g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
; 

a
n
d
 

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
a
rb

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
tt
e
rs

 t
o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

: 

 
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
; 

 
g
iv

e
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r;

 a
n
d
 

 
g
iv

e
s
 a

 2
1
 d

a
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t.
  

A
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
tt
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
 g

iv
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 p
u

t 
y
o
u
r 

v
ie

w
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 a
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 
lis

t 
o
f 

th
e
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 
g
iv

e
n
 
o
n
 
th

o
s
e
 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

B
o
th

 
lis

ts
 
a
re

 
u
p
d
a
te

d
 
w

e
e
k
ly

. 
T

h
is

 
o
n
lin

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

llo
w

s
 y

o
u
 t

o
: 

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

o
r 

p
a
s
t 

 

 
V

ie
w

 d
ra

w
in

g
s
, 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
lin

e

 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
lin

e

 
V

ie
w

 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
ti
c
e
 

2
1

Page 165



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

In
te

ra
c

ti
v

e
 

M
a
p

s

 
V

ie
w

 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f

u
ll 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
r 

re
fu

s
a
l)
 

 
V

ie
w

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
y
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 o

r 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

re
fu

s
a
l 
 

 
V

ie
w

 a
p
p
e

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

T
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 b

ri
e
fs

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
it
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

h
o
w

 t
o
 f

in
d
 

o
u
t 

m
o
re

 a
b
o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 m
a
p
s
 w

ill
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

 g
ra

p
h
ic

a
lly

 w
h

e
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t

a
k
e
n
. 

W
e
e
k
ly

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 L

is
t

a
n

d
 N

e
w

s
 

P
a
p

e
r

A
d

v
e
rt

s

A
 w

e
e
k
ly

 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

d
v
e
rt

s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
w

s
p

a
p
e
rs

 o
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
. 

S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
n
d
 f

o
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
u
b
lic

it
y
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

.

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
e
e
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 b
o
d
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 A

c
t 

o
r 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

A
d

jo
in

in
g

B
o

ro
u

g
h

A
d
jo

in
in

g
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 n

e
a
r 

a
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
.

In
te

rn
a

l
C

o
u

n
c

il
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts

S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
0
 f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
e

p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
 &

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 
A

re
a

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

s
 

(C
A

A
C

s
)

A
m

e
n

it
y
 

T
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 s

e
n
d
 c

o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 l

is
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 A
d

v
is

o
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

A
A

C
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

c
a
s
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 a

 l
is

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

 f
o

r 
a

m
e

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 g
ro

u
p
s
, 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
 

to
 n

o
ti
fy

 t
h

e
m

 o
f 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t.

 T
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 

2
2

Page 166



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

G
ro

u
p

s
w

e
ll 

a
s
 

c
h
e
c
k
 

th
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

d
ra

w
in

g
s
 

v
ia

 
th

e
 

w
e
b
, 

a
n
d

 
m

a
k
e
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ik

e
w

is
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

a
s
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 
T

h
e
y
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
in

g
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
F

o
ru

m

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
s
 

a
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
o

ru
m

 
w

h
ic

h
 

b
ri
n
g
s
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
 

m
a
jo

r,
 

c
o
n
tr

o
v
e
rs

ia
l 

a
n
d
 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g

e
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
y
 g

e
t 

a
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 t
h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
o
ru

m
 s

ta
g
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
o
ru

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
ru

m
 w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
id

e
n
in

g
 w

h
o
 w

ill
 

c
h
a
ir
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t

o
: 

 
a
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
; 

o
r 

 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

R
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
: 

 
b
y
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
r 

fa
x
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 

 
b
y
 s

e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
 e

m
a
il 

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 o
r 

 
o
n
-l
in

e
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
rm

. 

R
e

-c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 
N

o
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 
le

tt
e

rs
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

e
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 w
h
e
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 a

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

In
 

m
a
n
y
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
-

c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
e
: 

 
W

e
re

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l?

 

 
A

re
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t?

 

 
D

id
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 n
o
w

 u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
?
 

 
D

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

e
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

 n
o
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 m

ig
h
t 

n
o
w

 b
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
?
 

2
3

Page 167



S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

T
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 f

o
r 

re
-c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

h
o
rt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
2
1
 d

a
y
s
. 

N
e
g

o
ti

a
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
li

c
a

n
t

M
e

e
ti

n
g

s
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 i
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

e
rm

s
. 

T
h
is

 s
ta

g
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 

th
e
 L

D
F

 a
n
d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

re
fu

s
a
l.

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 –
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
P

la
n

n
in

g
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
T

h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

a
n
 

d
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
to

 g
ra

n
t 

o
r 

re
fu

s
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 b

y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 l
o
c
a

l 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 g
ra

n
te

d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
.

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r:

 

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

th
re

e
 d

a
y
s
 b

e
fo

re
h
a
n
d
. 

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

’ 
re

p
o
rt

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
s
. 

 
M

a
p

s
. 

 
D

ra
w

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 
P

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 o

f 
s
it
e
s
. 

 
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
p

e
a

k
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 Y

o
u
r 

V
ie

w
s
 a

t 
a
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

 c
a
n
 a

ls
o
  

b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

t 
w

w
w

.h
a
ri
n

g
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/i
n
d
e

x
/h

o
u
s
in

g
_
a
n
d

_
p
la

n
n
in

g
/p

la
n
n
in

g
-

m
a
in

p
a
g
e
.h

tm
#
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
_
fi
le

s

W
h
e
re

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 p

o
w

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

ra
n
te

d
 

to
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 

L
e
tt

e
r,

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
E

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
k
e
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
: 

2
4

Page 168



u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

2
5

S
ta

g
e

M
e
th

o
d

H
o

w
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 y

o
u

 

li
s
t,

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
);

 a
n
d
 

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
w

h
e
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 g

ra
n
te

d
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 t

e
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f

u
ll 

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
ti
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 l
is

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
.

W
h
e
re

 a
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
, 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 

to
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
.

If
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

th
e
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

A
ll 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i

s
 m

a
d
e
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 l

a
n

d
 u

s
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
ll 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

n
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

o
r 

a
n
 
a
p
p
e
a
l,
 
a
re

 
p
la

c
e
d
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
c
a
s
e
 
fi
le

 
a
n
d
 
m

a
y
 
b
e
 
s
e
e
n
 
b

y
 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 
a
n
y
 
o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
.

A
p

p
e
a
l

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 l
o
g
g
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
 

T
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
d
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 a

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 l
o
g
g
e
d
, 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

, 
th

e
 t

im
e
, 

d
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
a
ri
n
g
. 

  
Y

o
u
 c

a
n
 w

ri
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

In
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
t 

T
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 I

n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
R

e
g
is

tr
y
/S

c
a
n
n
in

g
. 
R

o
o
m

 3
/0

1
 K

it
e
 W

in
g
. 

T
e
m

p
le

 Q
u
a
y
 

H
o
u
s
e
. 

2
 T

h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

, 
T

e
m

p
le

 Q
u
a
y
, 

B
ri
s
to

l 
B

S
1
 6

P
N

, 
 t

e
l 
0
1
1
7
 3

7
2
 6

3
7
2
 o

r 
e
m

a
il 

th
e
m

 a
t 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
@

p
la

n
n
in

g
-i
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

.g
s
i.
g
o
v
.u

k

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m

Page 169



Statement of Community Involvement                                                                         February 2011 

26

5. Reviewing the Statement of Community Involvement 

5.1 The Statement of Community Involvement will be reviewed and updated, as 
necessary, in order to deliver more effective consultation and in line with any 
changes in legislation and planning law. Consultation and engagement 
processes and techniques will be checked and updated to ensure wide 
involvement of local residents, businesses, voluntary organisations and 
individuals.  Any gaps in information in the SCI will be identified in the Annual 
Monitoring Report (AMR). The AMR monitors the effectiveness of the policies 
in the LDF and assesses if it is achieving the desired results. The AMR will 
identify any need for revision of policy, which will be carried out in conjunction 
with public consultation and relevant bodies.  

Page 170



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

27

Appendix 1: Principles of Community Involvement 

Principle What this means for the community? 

Early contact Haringey Council will involve stakeholders at the earliest opportunity 
when plans are proposed.  

Developers of major development proposals will be advised to involve 
and consult with local communities early and in a meaningful way 
before applying for planning permission. The Council will recommend 
‘Planning for Real’ exercises or similar activities to be undertaken by 
developers and expect that these activities reflect good practice in line 
with the Council’s consultation principles.

Access to 
information 

All documents and notification letters for LDF documents and planning 
applications will be written clearly in plain English, with a full 
explanation of abbreviations. We will also use accessible formats such 
as Braille, audio tape, easy words and pictures, different languages 
(available on request) and electronic formats. 

With the LDF, where necessary a summary of large documents will be 
provided for ease of translation. 

Information on planning applications on the web will be user friendly 
and easy to navigate.  Translation of web pages can be achieved 
online using a link with a self explanatory icon on the Haringey website 
to a free or charged for (paid by Haringey) service covering all the 
Haringey Community languages. 

Site notices will be made user friendly and particular attention will be 
paid to visibility and readability of the notices. For major applications a 
site notice will be displayed on all publicly accessible boundaries of the 
site. For all other applications a single site notice will be displayed in a 
prominent location on or near the site.

We will also use Geographic Information Systems (GIS) more 
effectively as a tool for public consultation especially for LDF 
documents and Sustainability Appraisals (SA). 

Appropriate
methods

Community involvement activities will be planned in a consistent way 
to ensure the methods used are the right ones in each case. The 
Council has also identified potential consultation methods that are 
appropriate for different processes as listed in Appendix 3 (Potential 
methods for community involvement).    

Reducing
barriers

Haringey Council will be creative and innovative to involve all sections 
of the community in planning matters, particularly those that do not 
traditionally get involved in planning issues. Where appropriate, LDF 
documents will be made available in community venues such as 
libraries and on the Council’s website. We will also undertake activities 
to raise awareness on planning issues with open days and seminars. 

The Council has developed a LDF database and will be upgrading its 

Page 171



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

28

IT systems to improve consultation processes. Those community 
groups who want to be consulted on major development site 
applications and planning policy documents can request their 
representatives to be added to the list indicating that alongside LDF 
documents they also wish to be consulted on major planning 
applications.

Collaboration The Council will work with other Council services for joined up 
consultation exercises, where practicable and to avoid consultation 
fatigue or duplication. This will help to ensure consistency and prudent 
use of resources and ensure that a holistic approach is taken to 
multifaceted issues e.g. those involving trees, listed buildings, traffic 
impact etc. 

Feedback Feedback will be provided. 

Monitor and 
Review 

We aim to improve our community involvement practices through 
evaluating what we have done and how we can do better. We will 
invite the local community and other stakeholders to comment on how 
they have been involved. 

Page 172



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

29

Appendix 2: Community Involvement Methods  

Community involvement methods Planning process 

Information  by  letter (available in 
different formats) 

Development Plan Documents
Supplementary Planning Documents
Planning Applications 

Public Exhibitions/ Open Days/Road 
Shows 

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
General awareness on planning
Major Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Council websites (the internal website 
(Harinet) and the public website, and the 
Council’s consultation calendar) 

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
All Planning Applications 

Council Magazines and Publications e.g. 
‘Haringey People’ 

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

Leaflets, Newsletters (available in different 
formats)

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Major  Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Local press briefing and public notices Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Planning Applications 

Consultative documents requesting public 
comments

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Major Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Public meetings with displays Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Major Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Workshops and seminars Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
General awareness on planning
Major Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Surveys/ Questionnaires (available in 
different formats) 

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

Focus groups and discussions Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

User panels and representative groups  
e.g. Design Panel, Conservation Area 
Advisory Committee (CAAC),  

Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Major Planning Applications or 
Applications within Conservation 
Areas

Participatory forums/Community forum 
e.g. DM Forum,  Stakeholders Forum, HSP 
Forums

Development Plan Documents 
Major Planning Applications 

Page 173



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

30

Community involvement methods Planning process 

Planning for Real (PFR)/ Workshops Development Plan Documents 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Major Planning Applications (by 
developers)

Page 174



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

31

Appendix 3: Potential Methods for Community Involvement 

Method Advantages Disadvantages Costs involved 

Letters to statutory 
bodies and 
individuals
(available in 
different formats 
on request) 

Can reach a wide 
audience of people as it is 
relatively inexpensive. 
Can be used to invite 
views and explain the 
Council’s view and 
rationale for a certain 
position.

May not reach those 
with reading 
difficulties. 

Inexpensive 

Public Exhibitions/ 
Open Days/Road 
Shows 

Opportunity to inform 
people about proposals 
and projects. Options can 
be clearly set out and 
presented all at once. 
Exhibitions can be moved 
between locations for 
maximum targeting. Can 
be used to generate 
feedback on a topic. 

May only reach 
audience with 
interest in the topic. 
Information flow is 
largely one-way, 
though feedback 
can be requested 
(e.g. book to record 
comments, self-
administered 
questionnaires).

Inexpensive - 
cost of hiring the 
venue, and staff 
time setting up 
the exhibition. 

Council websites 
(the internal 
website (Harinet) 
and the public 
website) 

Economical. Easy means 
of referring people to 
information in a short 
period of time. 

Extent of internet 
access in the 
borough will be an 
issue.

Negligible

Council Magazines 
and Publications 
e.g. ‘Haringey 
People’

Reaches a wide range of 
residents and is 
economical. Useful when 
needing to broadcast 
information and give 
people an opportunity to 
respond.

Extent of readership 
may be limited. May 
not reach non-
residents of the 
borough.

Inexpensive or 
negligible

Leaflets,
Newsletters 
(available in 
different formats 
on request) 

Coverage is potentially 
wide, reaching residents 
and non-residents. Can 
be used to invite views. 
Can be high profile 
publicity.

Can generally give 
limited information. 
May deliver a poor 
response.
Information flow is 
largely one-way, 
although can inspire 
debate amongst 
residents. May not 
reach those with 
reading difficulties. 

Inexpensive, but 
requires skilled 
handling.

Local press 
briefing and public 
notices

Information can be 
provided in some detail. 
Economical

Not definite that a 
story will get in the 
press. May not 
reach those with 

Moderate

Page 175



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

32

Method Advantages Disadvantages Costs involved 

reading difficulties. 

Consultative
documents 
requesting public 
comments

Clear statement of 
purpose and reasoning 
should be apparent. 
Anyone can respond. 
Amenable to process on 
the web. 

Relies on initiative of 
responders. 
Responses not likely 
to be representative 
of all 
opinion/interests.
Can be hijacked by 
dominant and more 
resourceful
individuals and 
organisations. May 
not reach those with 
reading difficulties. 

Moderate/expen
sive - costs of 
publishing the 
documentation
and
administering
the distribution 
and feedback 
process. Costs 
reduced if the 
process is done 
on the web. 

Public meetings 
with displays 

Combines the advantages 
of exhibitions with more 
informed discussion and 
opportunity to comment. 
Involves, informs and 
empowers the local 
community. Can involve 
different language groups 
using interpreters. 

Relies on those who 
attend to comment, 
and hence can 
sometimes be 
unrepresentative.
May only attract 
those with negative 
views. Many do not 
feel able to 
participate, as can 
be hijacked by more 
dominant and 
resourceful
individuals.  Size is 
limited by venue 

 Moderate 

Workshops and 
seminars

Opportunity for 
stakeholders to make 
their opinion heard in a 
public debate. 
Encourages active 
citizenship. Encourages 
participants to develop a 
stronger and more 
relaxed working 
relationship. Can involve 
different language groups 
using interpreters. 

Depends on 
stakeholders to take 
part.

Moderate - cost 
of hiring 
appropriate
facilities for 
period of the 
workshop.

Surveys/ 
Questionnaires
(available in 
different formats 
on request) 

Good sampling technique 
should ensure that all 
shades of opinion are 
canvassed and captured. 
Can be geographically 
focused in terms of 
neighbourhoods, town 

Can appear to be 
remote; while it 
captures public 
opinion, it does not 
necessarily capture 
opinion or the 
interests of 

Moderate - 
skilled exercise 
which should be 
undertaken by 
trained staff or 
professionals.
Can be 

Page 176



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

33

Method Advantages Disadvantages Costs involved 

centres, and open space. 
Can be used to reach 
particular target groups.

institutions,
corporate bodies 
and developers etc. 
May not reach those 
with reading 
difficulties. 

inexpensive or 
moderately
expensive.  

Focus groups and 
discussions 

A participatory approach, 
which can explore views 
on specific issues. A two-
way process which gives 
clear encouragement to 
contribute ideas and 
views. Can be used to 
reach a target audience 
and those that do not 
respond to traditional 
forms of consultation.  An 
opportunity to explore the 
factors which support an 
individual's opinion. Good 
for sensitive subjects 
where individuals may not 
respond to a structured 
questionnaire/group
discussion. Can involve 
different language groups 
using interpreters. 

Can be very time-
consuming, and 
relies on good-will of 
respondents. 
Ultimately the 
group's views are 
only as 
representative as 
the group itself, i.e. 
selection of the 
group is very 
important. Cannot 
be used to 
extrapolate results 
for the whole 
population. Requires 
skilful facilitation. 

Moderate - more 
costly if data is 
examined by a 
Consultant

User panels and 
representative
groups (VS)
e.g. Design Panel, 
Conservation Area 
Advisory 
Committee 
(CAAC),

Provides a platform that is 
stable, can be very 
knowledgeable
(representative groups) 
and gives a sense of 
involvement. Can be used 
to address more 
technically complex 
issues.

Where volunteers 
are being used, 
there is a need for 
frequent
replacement.

 Inexpensive/ 
Moderate

Participatory 
forums/Community 
forum
e.g. DM Forum,
Stakeholders 
Forum, HSP 
Forums

Provides the opportunity 
for participation in the 
process and procedures 
of planning. Strong two-
way process.

Strong personalities 
may dominate 
proceedings.

 Moderate 

Planning for Real 
(PFR)/ Workshops 

Involves, empowers and 
informs respondents – 
provides a degree of local 

Structured
approaches of PFR 
may limit its 

Moderate/Expen
sive

Page 177



Statement of Comm
__________

unity Involvement  February 2011 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

34

Method Advantages Disadvantages Costs involved 

ownership. Available as a 
tailored package, and 
easy to initiate. Takes 
respondents through the 
physical planning process 
and enables the 
visualisation of options. 
Can catch a wide range of 
participants. Can involve 
different language groups 
using interpreters. 

usefulness for some 
situations. Needs 
planning,
administration, time, 
and resources. 

External
Consultants

Can provide specialised 
and focused facilitation for 
engagement events. This 
can allow for new and 
innovative engagement 
techniques to which 
participants respond more 
constructively.

May play a limited 
role in the 
consultation process 
and a very specific 
approach may not fit 
with the consultation 
aims.

Expensive. 

Councillor and MP 
surgeries

Local residents and 
groups have access to 
elected representatives.

There may be some 
disappointment as it 
is not always 
possible for 
Councillors and MPs 
to intervene in the 
planning system in 
the way that their 
constituents might 
want because they 
must operate within 
the confines of 
planning law/policy. 

Free

Local amenity, 
tenant and other 
groups

They have a wealth of 
local knowledge and play 
a vital role in expressing 
the concerns or needs of 
the local community. 

They do not 
necessarily speak 
for all of the 
community as there 
is often more than 
one view on a 
development or 
proposed plan. 

Free

Page 178



3
5

u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

 
_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

: 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

 –
 P

u
b

li
c

 S
e

c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
ts

  

O
v

e
ra

ll
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t:

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

‘H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
’s

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 c

o
h

e
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

h
e

re
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 v

a
lu

e
d

 a
n

d
 

re
s
p

e
c
te

d
. 
B

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 b
e

tt
e

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
’s

 w
ill

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
re

a
te

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri

ty
e

th
n

ic
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
le

s
b

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
, 
b

is
e

x
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
g

e
n

d
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
u

n
d

e
r-

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
, 

in
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

ti
-d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
’.
 

P
u

b
li

c
 S

e
c

to
r 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

V
a

lu
in

g
 t

h
e

 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

e
c

to
r 

V
a

lu
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
a

it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
k
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

e
ll

-b
e
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
.

R
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

e
rt

a
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
 o

r 
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

/o
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

W
o

rk
in

g
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 

A
c

ti
v

e
ly

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

In
n

o
v

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

B
e

s
t 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 
U

ti
lis

e
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 a
n

d
 b

e
s

t 
p

ra
c

ti
c

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r.
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 i

n
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
, 
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 f

le
x

ib
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
n

e
s

s
, 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
. 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
 t

o
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
2
.

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 (
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

) 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
m

a
rg

in
a

li
s

e
d

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 c
a

n
 b

e
 h

e
a

rd
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

ly
.

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
c

to
r 

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
a

it
h

 s
e
c
to

r 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 f

ro
m

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

a
t 

p
u

b
lic

 b
o

d
ie

s
 c

a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

In
v
e

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
u
n

d
in

g
, 

w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
_

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_ 2
 I
n
 t
h
e
 C

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
 w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

Page 179



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 5: Development Plan Making Stages 

Stage 1: Pre-Production (Evidence Gathering – Identifying Issues and Options)

What
happens?

The Council seeks to find out what the issues are facing the 
borough. These should be founded on a clear understanding of long-
term economic, social and environmental needs of the area. Types of 
evidence gathering that the Council will undertake include: 
commissioning studies, surveys, and undertaking background 
research into population forecasts. The Council produces a Scoping 
Report for the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) which will accompany a 
DPD and it will begin to identify issues and options for the DPD. The 
Council consults with stakeholders to identify key issues and options 
for DPD and informally consults on the SA Scoping Report. 

How Long? No formal period of consultation. The Council will informally consult 
with various strategic and statutory consultees and other appropriate 
local stakeholders to identify priorities and aspirations to inform the 
preparation of the policy document. 

Stage 2: Production (Preparing Issues, Alternative Options and Preferred 
Options  Documents)

What The Council will then incorporate views expressed in the previous 
stage and the findings of the SA into the production of a draft DPD 
(Regulation 25). This will set out the key issues that need to be 
addressed and the options and alternative options for dealing with 
them. It will be detailed, yet concise, providing where necessary maps, 
diagrams, and illustrations. The representations received during this 
consultation will inform the production of a second draft DPD 
(Regulation 26) (if the Council deems necessary to undertake this 
stage of production) or the final proposed submission document. 

happens?

Documents 
available

The Council will publish the document, and make it available at the 
Council’s planning office, the all libraries in the borough and the 
Council website. 

How long? 

tudies and the results of previous material, will also be 

The Council will formally consult on this document for at least six 
weeks with the community and statutory bodies to check that 
suggested options are practical and realistic. The Council will also 
include a commentary on the SA of options. 

Any other supporting information, such as technical studies, 
background s
made available to help people understand what they are being asked 
to comment upon. This will enable people to understand the Council’s 
position and any actions taken. 

Regulation
26

After consideration of the results of the Regulation 25 consultation 
the Council can produce a second draft DPD, if necessary.  This 
document will then be advertised for at least a six week period of 
consultation.  The SA report will also be available for consultation 
during this period.  Representations received during this consultation 
will inform the production of the proposed submission DPD.  The 

36

Page 180



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Council will also produce a summary report outlining any 
representations received during the formal consultation period and the 
Council’s response.  This will enable a clear link to be made between 
responses and the Council decisions or actions.  This summary of 
representations will also be available for inspection at the planning 
office, all Haringey libraries and on our website. 

Pr The proposed submission is prepared following the previous 
consultation stage(s). The document, along with the SA, proposals 
map and supporting documents will be consulted on for at least six 
weeks asking respondents to comment on two elements: soundness 
and legal compliance. 

oposed
submission

(Regulation
27)

Submission
 the final SA report which sets 

l impact impacts of the proposals.  The council 

The final version of the DPD will be prepared, called the Submission 
document.  This will be accompanied by
out the environmenta
will submit the final version of the DPD, SA, and Consultation 
Statement to the Secretary of State (through a planning inspector), 
published and then be made available in the same way. 

Stage 3: Independent Examination 

What
happens?

The Secretary of State will appoint a Planning Inspector to examine 
the document, consider any representations received and assess 
whether the submission DPD is effective and realistic. Anyone has the 
right to appear in person at the examination. The Inspector will then 

 a report to the Council setting out how the DPD must be changed write
(if at all).

Documents 
available

The Inspector’s report will be binding and made available for public 
inspection. It is the Council’s intention to meet all the minimum 
requirements for consultation as set out in the Regulations. 

Stage 4: Adoption

Following the Inspector’s report, the Council will incorporate all the 
recommendations.

What
happens?

Documents 
available ble locally at the Council’s 

planning office and all libraries and the Council’s website 
www.haringey.gov.uk

The Council will adopt and publish the document together with its 
SA. This will be advertised and made availa

. The document will be reviewed formally every 
three years or as appropriate, this will decide if parts need changing to 
keep it up to date. Further details are given in the LDS. The Annual 
Monitoring Report will also monitor how effective policies are in 
meeting the overall vision and objectives for the LDF. 

37

Page 181



Statement of Community Involvement   February 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 6: Supplementary Planning Document Stages  

Stage 1: Pre-Production (Evidence Gathering) 

What
happens?

Local Authorities are not required to prepare an issues/ options 
document. However, the Council may seek input from particular bodies 
on the issue, topic or area under consideration when preparing a SPD. 

Documents 
available

If any pre-production discussions are undertaken associated documents 
will be made available at the Council’s planning office and on the 
website.

How Long? This stage may not have a fixed time limit, depending on the nature of 
the document. 

Stage 2: Production (Preparing Documents) 

What
happens?

The Council will prepare and publish a draft SPD, accompanied by a 
Sustainability Appraisal. 

Documents 
available

The Council will publish these documents, and make them available at 
the Council’s planning office and the all libraries in the Borough and the 
Council website. 

How long? The Council will formally consult for six weeks. 

Then what? A summary report will be produced outlining any representations 
received during these formal consultation periods and the Council’s 
response.

Stage 3: Adoption 

What
happens?

The Council will consider representations made to the draft SPD, make 
any changes as a result, and then adopt it.

Documents 
available

Copies will be made available at the planning office and on the Council 
website.

How long? There is no consultation at this stage. 

38

Page 182



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 7: Planning Application Notification, Publicity and Consultation 

These are the following minimum standards that the Council will use for the following 
types of applications. Where necessary the Council will exceed these minimum 
requirements.

Pre-
Application
Stage

Major
Applications
and those 
Departing from 
Development
Plan

Controversial 
or Sensitive 
Applications

Other
Applications
including
Conservation 
Area and 
Listed
Buildings
Consent

Appeals

Advertise on 
Website receipt of 
application

No Yes Yes Yes Yes

Post site notice No Yes Yes Yes No

Consultation
letter sent to 
neighbours

No Yes Yes Always, except 
applications for 
Certificate of 
Lawfulness

Letter sent 
to persons 
who
comment
on original 
application

Advert in local 
newspaper

No – but to be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.

Yes No. Yes No

Public exhibitions 
of proposals 

To be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.
Council may 
also be 
involved.

To be organised 
by applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes. The 
Council may 
also be involved 

To be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes. The 
Council may 
also be 
involved

Where
appropriate, to 
be organised by 
applicant. The 
Council may 
also be involved 

No

Press release To be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.

To be organised 
by applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.

To be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.

Where
appropriate, to 
be organised by 
applicant.

No

General advice in 
response to 
queries from the 
public

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

39

Page 183



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Pre-
Application
Stage

Major
Applications
and those 
Departing from 
Development
Plan

Controversial 
or Sensitive 
Applications

Other Appeals
Applications
including
Conservation 
Area and 
Listed
Buildings
Consent

Local planning 
meetings with 
applicants
presenting
proposals and 
answering 
questions from 
the public. 

To be 
organised by 
applicants of 
major or 
sensitive
schemes.

Also
Development 
Management  
Forum as per 
the set criteria 

Development 
Management  
Forum as per 
the set criteria 

Development 
Management  
Forum as per 
the set criteria 

Development 
Management  
Forum as per 
the set criteria 

No,
although
some 
appeals
are dealt 
with by 
Public
Inquiry

40

Page 184



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 8: Consultation policy – neighbour notification3

General Household Developments 

Rear extension  Both adjacent properties and 3 properties to rear

Rear roof extension Both adjacent properties and 3 properties to rear 

Front roof extension Both adjacent properties and 3 properties opposite

Material alterations to 
front elevation  

Both adjacent properties and 3 properties opposite

Erection of domestic 
garage to front

Both adjacent properties and 3 properties opposite

Erection of boundary 
fencing

Adjacent properties

Crossovers  Adjacent properties 

Erection of garden 
sheds, covered 
swimming pools and 
outbuildings

Adjacent properties and all properties abutting the site 

Residential Development 

Conversions All conversions Application property and adjacent 
properties and 3 properties at the front 
and back 

Conversions 
involving
alterations to front 
elevation

Adjacent properties and 3 properties 
opposite

Conversions 
involving rear 
alterations/ground 
floor extensions 

Adjacent properties and 3 properties at 
the rear 

New Build All new build 
residential
development sites 

Adjacent properties and 3 properties 
opposite and to rear of site 

All major 
residential
development (10+ 
units)

10 adjacent properties on either side of 
site, 20 opposite and 20 rear

Major Commercial/Retail Development 

All major 
commercial/retail
development  

10 adjacent properties on either side of the site, 20 opposite 
and 20 to the rear of the site 

Change of Use  

All change of use 
applications

3 adjacent properties on either side of site, 6 opposite and 6 
properties to the rear 

Advertisements

3 Relevant local resident and tenant groups will also be consulted where appropriate. 

41

Page 185



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

All advertisements Residential properties affected

Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings 

Applications in 
Conservation areas or 
applications for Listed 
Building Consent 

The appropriate CAAC, neighbours as per the description of 
development. Also notify English Heritage 

Mobile Phone Mast Applications 

Mobile phone applications undergo a procedure which involves wide 
consultation encompassing surrounding streets, especially in built up areas. 
We also include the nearest schools in the consultation. In addition to this, 
consultation on all mobile phone base station applications will extend to a 
100m radius and operators will be asked to provide information on beam 
intensity and evidence of the need for a new mast. An annual meeting will be 
held by the Planning Service with the Mast Operators, to discuss their roll-out 
programme.

42

Page 186



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 9: Weekly planning list and statutory publicity 

Below is a list of interested parties receiving the weekly planning list of 
planning applications registered with the Council. 

Haringey Council Other

Housing Service 

Neighbourhood Management 

Building Control 

Environmental Health 

Economic Regeneration 

Relevant Councillors 

Education

Planning Policy 

Recreation Services 

Waste Management 

Education

Relevant Amenity groups 

Relevant Residents Associations 

Relevant Conservation Area Advisory 
Committee (CAAC) 

Relevant Statutory Bodies

Statutory publicity – press adverts 

Nature of development Publicity required  

Development where the application is 
accompanied by Environmental 
Statement

Advert in newspaper and site notice 

Affecting public right of way Advert in newspaper and site notice  

Major Development Advert in newspaper and site notice 

Minor Development Advert in newspaper and site notice 

Development affecting the setting of a 
listed building

Advert in newspaper and site notice 

Development affecting the character or 
appearance of a Conservation Area 

Advert in newspaper and site notice 

Permitted development requiring prior 
notification to local planning authority 

Site notice by developer 

43

Page 187



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Appendix 10: Consultation policy - internal departments  

Planning Policy Team 

All proposals for a major development – 10+ units/1,000m² 

Where granting permission would be contrary to a policy in the development plan 

Proposals to develop on designated open space

Proposals for development for tall buildings (over 20m in height) 

Provision of day nursery or other day care facility 

Proposals affecting any local area regeneration initiative / action plan (i.e. NDC, 
neighbourhood, etc...) 

Design and Conservation 

All proposals for development (including demolition and advertisements) in a conservation 
area or in an area of special character

All proposals for a major development – 10+ units/1,000m² 

All applications for conservation area consent/listed building consent and on designated 
sites of industrial heritage interest 

Proposals for development for tall buildings (over 20m in height) 

Note: The conservation team requires a full set of plans with every referral. 
This will include any photographs, details of height of surrounding buildings, 
which the applicant is required to provide in all circumstances. This is to 
provide a contextual background. Drawings must be accurate and should show 
details of access points and loss of trees (if applicable)

Transportation

Mini cab offices 

New retail development

All change of use 

Employment generating uses

Car repairs/workshops/garages/ car washes 

Conversion of dwellings into flats 

New access onto a highway/crossovers 

All proposals that require a traffic impact assessment and the submission of a travel plan. 
Threshold of 2,500m² 

Major proposals – 10+ dwellings/1,000m² (just notification) 

New residential developments without provision of car parking

Note: Transport assessments and travel plans are requested on all 
applications over 2,500 m².

Environmental Health

A1 > A5

Noise & pollution Extensions to A3, A4 and A5 

Food & hygiene Proposals involving HMO 

Hostels

Car repair workshop/garages 

Car washes 

44

Page 188



Statement of Community Involvement – Submission Document     January 2011 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Environmental Health

Launderettes

Petrol filling stations 

Employment involving industrial processes 

Provision of day nursery or other day care facility 

Sites suspected to be contaminated 

Sites located close to an acknowledged noise source 

Legal

All proposals for a major development – 10+ units/1,000² 

Consultation consists of 
specific letter to legal 
department notifying them 
of 13 week deadline 

Developments where it is proposed that a planning 
obligation under section 106 will be sought (consultation in 
such cases may not occur at the time of the submission but 
should take place before a decision is made requiring a 
section 106) 

Proposals for new residential developments without the 
provision of car parking 

Recreation Services (Arboriculture department) 

Development involving the loss of trees

Education 

Major residential schemes 10+ units

Sites for travellers 

Proposals adjoining school premises 

Parks Service

Proposals to develop on designated open space 

Proposals to develop within a park 

Housing

All major housing developments 10+ units

Building Control

All proposals for a major development – 10+ units/1,000m² 

Waste Management

All proposals for a major development – 10+ units/1,000m² 

45

Page 189



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Tottenham Hotspur CPZ
	8 Waste and recycling
	Briefinf - Recycling from estates visit
	Recycling from flats - brieifng from 4th March
	Further policy options - notes and appendices

	10 Community engagement with the planning and licensing process

